
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 19 July 2017 5.30 pm 
Committee Rooms 1-2, City 

Hall 

 
Membership: 
 

 
Councillors Jim Hanrahan (Chair), Peter West (Vice-Chair), 
Biff Bean, Kathleen Brothwell, Bob Bushell, Paul Gowen, 
Gary Hewson, Ronald Hills, Tony Speakman, Edmund Strengiel 
and Naomi Tweddle 
 

Substitute members: 
 

Councillors Jackie Kirk and Neil Murray 
 

Officers attending: 
 

Mick Albans, Emma Brownless, Simon Cousins, Democratic 
Services and Kieron Manning 
 

 
The Planning Committee comprises democratically elected members who will be presented 
with a recommendation from the professional officers for each application on the agenda. 
After each application has been presented, those interested parties who have registered to 
speak will then be given 5 minutes to verbally present their views, and, following this, the 
committee will debate each proposal and make the decision, having considered all relevant 
information. 
 
Clearly the process of making a decision will inevitably cause some people to feel aggrieved, 
but it is hoped that all interested parties will feel that their views have been considered as 
part of the process. 
 
Please ensure that your mobile phones are switched off or set to silent throughout the 
meeting and please refrain from attempting to speak from the public gallery unless you have 
formally registered to speak on an application, in which case the Chair will call you to the 
table at the relevant time. 
 

A G E N D A 

SECTION A Page(s)  

1.  Confirmation of Minutes - 21 June 2017  
 

5 - 16 

2.  Declarations of Interest  
 
Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct, 
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary. 
 

 

3.  Work to Trees in City Council Ownership  
 

17 - 22 

Public Document Pack



 

4.  Applications for Development  
 

 

(a)   Lincoln Central Railway Station, St Marys Street, Lincoln  
 

23 - 30 

(b)   19 St Catherines, Lincoln  
 

31 - 52 

(c)   Land To Rear Of 110 Longdales Road, Lincoln  
 

53 - 92 

(d)   The Phoenix, St Helens Avenue, Lincoln  
 

93 - 114 



 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

FOR PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, CONSERVATION AREA AND ADVERTISEMENT 
APPLICATIONS ON THE AGENDA OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
 

The Background Papers for the Planning, Listed Building, Conservation Area and 
Advertisement Applications are: 
 
1. The appropriate Planning Information Folder: This is a file with the same reference 

number as that shown on the Agenda for the Application. It contains the following 
documents: 
 
(a) the application forms; 
(b) plans of the proposed development; 
(c) site plans; 
(d) certificate relating to ownership of the site; 
(e) consultation letters and replies to and from statutory consultees and bodies; 
(f) letters and documents from interested parties; 
(g) memoranda of consultation and replies to and from Departments of the Council. 
 

2. Any previous Planning Information Folders referred to in the Reports on the Agenda for 
the particular application or in the Planning Information Folder specified above. 
 

3. City of Lincoln Local Plan: Adopted 26 August 1998. 
 

4. The emerging draft Local Development Framework is now a material consideration. 
 

5. Lincolnshire Structure Plan – Final Modifications 3 January 2006 
 

6. Regional Spatial Strategy – 17 March 2005 
 

7. Applications which have Background Papers additional to those specified in 1 to 6 
above set out in the following table.  These documents may be inspected at the 
Planning Reception, City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln. 

 
APPLICATIONS WITH ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND PAPERS (See 7 above.) 
 
Application No.:  Additional Background Papers 



 

CRITERIA FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE VISITS (AGREED BY DC COMMITTEE ON 
21 JUNE 2006 AND APPROVED BY FULL COUNCIL ON 15 AUGUST 2006) 
 
 
Criteria: 
 

 Applications which raise issues which are likely to require detailed first hand knowledge 
of the site and its surroundings to enable a well-informed decision to be taken and the 
presentational material at Committee would not provide the necessary detail or level of 
information. 

 

 Major proposals which are contrary to Local Plan policies and proposals but which have 
significant potential benefit such as job creation or retention, environmental 
enhancement, removal of non-confirming uses, etc. 

 

 Proposals which could significantly affect the city centre or a neighbourhood by reason 
of economic or environmental impact. 

 

 Proposals which would significantly affect the volume or characteristics of road traffic in 
the area of a site. 

 

 Significant proposals outside the urban area. 
 

 Proposals which relate to new or novel forms of development. 
 

 Developments which have been undertaken and which, if refused permission, would 
normally require enforcement action to remedy the breach of planning control. 

 

 Development which could create significant hazards or pollution. 
 
 
So that the targets for determining planning applications are not adversely affected by the 
carrying out of site visits by the Committee, the request for a site visit needs to be made as 
early as possible and site visits should be restricted to those matters where it appears 
essential.   
 
A proforma is available for all Members.  This will need to be completed to request a site visit 
and will require details of the application reference and the reason for the request for the site 
visit.  It is intended that Members would use the proforma well in advance of the consideration 
of a planning application at Committee.  It should also be used to request further or additional 
information to be presented to Committee to assist in considering the application.   
  



Planning Committee 21 June 2017 

 
Present: Councillor Jim Hanrahan (in the Chair),  

Councillor Peter West, Councillor Biff Bean, Councillor 
Kathleen Brothwell, Councillor Bob Bushell, Councillor 
Gary Hewson, Councillor Tony Speakman and Councillor 
Naomi Tweddle 
 

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Paul Gowen, Councillor Ronald Hills and 
Councillor Edmund Strengiel 
 

 
11.  Confirmation of Minutes - 24 May 2017  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 24 May 2017 be confirmed. 
 

12.  Declarations of Interest  
 

Councillor Biff Bean declared a Personal Interest with regard to the agenda item 
titled 'Land Bounded By Rope Walk, High Street, Firth Road and Beevor Street, 
Lincoln.'  
 
Reason: He had attended a meeting with one of the applicant’s representatives 
on another matter in relation to a traffic conference. He was not known to this 
representative as a close associate and had in no way predetermined his interest 
on the application to be considered.  
 

13.  Work to Trees in City Council Ownership  
 

The Arboricultural Officer: 
 

a. advised members of the reasons for proposed works to trees in City 
Council ownership and sought consent to progress the works identified at 
Appendix A  
 

b. explained that Ward Councillors had been notified of the proposed works  
 

c. stated that in some cases it was not possible to plant a tree in the exact 
location and in these cases a replacement would be replanted in the 
vicinity.  

 
RESOLVED that the works set out in the schedule at Appendix A attached to the 
report be approved.  
 

14.  Change to Order of Business  
 

RESOLVED that the order of business be amended to allow the report on Land at 
Blenheim Road, Lincoln to be considered as the next agenda item, and the report 
on 1 Primrose Close Lincoln to be considered as the subsequent application for 
development. 
 

15.  Application for Development: Land At Blenheim Road, Lincoln.  
 

The Planning Manager: 
 

5

Item No. 1



a. described the proposed development plot situated within Lincoln’s West 
End, located on the north side of Blenheim Road some 250 metres north 
of Carholme Road, surrounded by domestic residential properties, St. 
Faith’s C of E Infant School, and Lincolnshire SureStart Children’s Centre 
 

b. sought planning permission for 2no. 1 bedroom apartments and 8no. 2 
bedroom apartments with associated car parking, infrastructure and hard 
landscaping with a total of 7 no. car parking spaces sited to the rear of the 
building, accessed via a secure private automated entrance system  
 

c. provided details of the policies pertaining to the application as follows: 
 

 National Planning Policy Framework  

 Policy LP26 - Design and Amenity 
 

d. outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise 
 

e. advised members of the main issues to be considered by the application 
as follows:  
 

 Design and Visual Amenity 

 Residential Amenity 

 Highways  

 Contaminated Land  

 Archaeology 
 

f. concluded that: 
 

 It was considered that the design of the proposed development had 
regard to the character of the surrounding area and was of a scale 
and height in keeping with the adjacent properties and the 
surrounding area.  

 With the amendments made to the scheme the development would 
have no adverse impact on neighbours in terms of loss of privacy by 
overlooking and the separation distances were of those similarly 
found with existing terrace properties.  

 Therefore the proposal would accord with both national and local 
planning policy and would be a positive addition to the area.  

 
Mr James Burt, local resident, addressed Planning Committee in objection to the 
proposed development, covering the following main points: 
 

 He spoke on behalf of his mother living adjacent to the application site, 
together with other neighbours living close to the proposed development. 

 The revision to the balcony height within the development at 1.7 metres 
and the use of opaque glass was an improvement. 

 He assumed that the upper balcony to the left hand side of the 
development had also been increased in height accordingly. 

 He referred to potential overlook from the large angled windows of the 
proposed development which would affect the privacy of neighbouring 
properties/gardens. 

 Issues of scale, height and proximity of the proposed development leading 
to a loss of light for residents. 

 Issues of light pollution from the balconies. 

6



 Issues associated with the communal waste management area. 

 Noise/traffic issues. 

 He understood the need for additional housing in the area and welcomed 
the signing of an S106 agreement to restrict occupancy of the proposed 
apartments by students. 

 
Mr Adam Wilson addressed Planning Committee on behalf of the applicant in 
support of the planning application, covering the following main points: 
 

 He spoke on behalf of the applicant, Lincolnshire Premier Homes. 

 The proposed development would deliver high quality accommodation. 

 The applicant had worked closely with planning officers to address 
concerns raised. 

 The applicant had commissioned a local chartered institute surveyor to 
carry out market research to ensure the proposals met market demand. 

 The submitted scheme supported housing demand in the area. 

 The applicant had worked with officers to address issues of 
overlook/privacy from the rear balcony. 

 The balcony would be used for outdoor dining not for overlook. 

 The balconies would only be enjoyed for a small time period during the 
summer months when the trees were likely to be in full leaf. 

 The balconies had been lifted in height above eye level to 1.7 metres to 
eliminate any overlook. 

 He asked members to support this scheme and recommend planning 
approval. 

 
Members discussed the content of the report in further detail. Some members 
expressed concerns regarding issues of parking, however, other members were 
happy to see some off-street parking provision as part of the development. 
 
Members made the following comments: 
 

 Could officers give an assurance if the scheme went ahead that there 
would be an adequate drainage scheme covering the recommendations 
made by AWA during the consultation process? 

 The relationship distances between windows of adjacent properties was no 
worse than other similar developments. 

 
The Planning Manager offered the following points of clarification to members: 
 

 The balcony screens would be 1.7 metres in height and obscure glazed, 
conditioned as such to remain in perpetuity. 

 The window to window relationship between existing properties and the 
new development was equivalent to that encountered in most urban 
streets and considered acceptable by officers. 

 Drainage would be dealt with as part of reserved detail in consultation with 
local drainage boards and the Highways Authority. 

 
RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

 Development to commence within three years. 

 Development to be carried out in accordance with plans. 

 Samples of the materials. 
7



 Contaminated land. 

 Balconies cannot be changed in anyway without the written consent of the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 Surface water drainage. 

 Close the existing access. 

 Highway plans be available at all times. 

 Rear boundary wall to be retained unless otherwise agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 
16.  Application for Development: 1 Primrose Close, Lincoln  

 
The Planning Manager: 
 

a. sought planning permission for the erection of a single storey rear 
extension and alterations to the existing roof at 1 Primrose Close, Lincoln, 
including an increase to a section of the roofs ridge height by 1.1m to 
accommodate a loft conversion featuring 3 velux windows 
 

b. described the proposed development plot, a detached two storey dwelling, 
which has previously been extended in the form of a two storey side 
extension and front porch (planning permission 2009/0579/F) located off 
Brant Road, also featuring a conservatory to the rear which had been 
constructed under the properties permitted development allowance, 
although this proposal would see the demolition of the conservatory to 
facilitate the proposed single storey rear extension 
 

c. outlined the site history to the application as detailed within the officer’s 
report 

 
d. provided details of the policies pertaining to the application as follows: 

 

 National Planning Policy Framework  

 Policy 34 - Design and Amenity Standards 

 Policy 64 - House Extensions, Domestic Garages and other 
Developments within the Curtilage of a Dwelling 

 Policy LP26 Design and Amenity 63 
 

e. outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise 
 

f. advised members of the main issues to be considered by the application 
as follows:  
 

 Visual Amenity 

 Residential Amenity 

 Highway Safety  
 

g. concluded that the proposed increase in roof height and single storey rear 
extension would not cause unacceptable harm to the residential amenity of 
neighbouring properties or the visual amenity of the wider area in 
accordance with Policy 34 and 64 of the City of Lincoln Local Plan, Policy 
LP26 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan and the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

 
Mr Myles Charles addressed Planning Committee on behalf of the applicant in 

8



support of the planning application, covering the following main points: 
 

 The proposed single storey extension covered a smaller footprint than the 
existing conservatory. 

 The ridge height would only be increased by 1 metre. 

 There were other houses on the street with velux windows. The proposed 
development was not out of character. 

 An exact tile/brick match for the extension had been sourced. 

 The plans had been submitted three times in total due to revisions having 
been made. 

 Various options had been explored and the final application included only 
three velux windows. 

 Neighbouring residents were happy with the proposals. 

 Three other properties in the area already had velux windows, two having 
six and one with four. 

 The Highways Authority had raised no objections. 

 No additional cars would be sited at the property, the development would 
create additional space required in the house for a young family. 

 Comments made by one of the neighbours were personal. 

 The property would be lived in by the present family for several years. 
 
Members discussed the content of the report in further detail.  
 
RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
Standard Conditions  
 
01) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 

years beginning with the date of this permission. 
   
  Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990. 
  
02) With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of 

this consent, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in 
accordance with the drawings listed within Table A. 

 
  The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the 

approved plans and in any other approved documents forming part of the 
application. 

   
  Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the 

approved plans. 
 
Conditions to be Discharged before Commencement of Works 
 
03)     Samples of all external materials to be used in the development shall be 

submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before the 
development commences. The approved materials shall not be substituted 
without the written consent of the City Council as Local Planning Authority. 

 
   Reason: In the interest of visual amenity.  
    

9



Conditions to be Discharged before Use is Implemented 
 
  None. 
  
Conditions to be Adhered to at all Times 
 
  None. 
 

17.  Application for Development: Land Bounded By Rope Walk, High Street, Firth 
Road and Beevor Street, Lincoln.  

 
The Principal Planning Manager: 
 

a. described the proposed development site situated to the north of Firth 
Road/Beevor Street, to the east of Tritton Road, to the south of Rope 
Walk/St. Mark’s Street and to the west of the High Street, bisected by the 
River Witham but connected by a bridge within the site 
 

b. referred to three other bridges located adjacent to the application site, 
comprising a wooden footbridge and the Firth Road steel bridge to the 
south; the Rope Walk bridge to the north, with a row of terraced houses 
and a small triangular shaped plot of disused land bordering the 
application site’s southern corner 
 

c. advised that the application site was irregular in shape occupying the 
existing St Marks Retail Park and part of the Shopping Centre, which 
comprised a mixture of retail and food and beverage uses with associated 
car parking, at grade and multi-storey. 

 
d. highlighted the main vehicular access from a traffic light controlled 

intersection off Rope Walk, with the east-west spine road terminating at St 
Mark’s Square, service yard accesses provided on Rope Walk and on Firth 
Road with units along the eastern boundary accessed directly from the 
High Street, and 890 surfaced and decked car parking spaces on-site 
 

e. sought outline planning permission with details of access for consideration 
including proposals for:- 
 

 Comprehensive redevelopment comprising a retail-led mixed-use 
scheme to include demolition of existing buildings and other 
structures 

 Alterations to existing retail buildings 

 Engineering works (including alterations to river bank) 

 Construction of new buildings and structures to provide: 
 

 Up to 32,940 sqm (GIA) of retail (Class A1) 
 Up to 7,666 sqm GIA of restaurants and cafes, drinking 

establishments and hot food takeaways (Class A3-A5) 
 Up to 150 residential units (Class C3), up to 21,006 sqm 

(GIA) of purpose built student accommodation (up to 1,100 
units) (sui generis use) 

 Up to 3,622 sqm (GIA) of leisure floorspace (Class D2)  
 Up to 3,299 sqm (GIA) of hotel providing up to 130 rooms 

(Class C1)  

10



 Ancillary and associated development including new and 
enhanced pedestrian routes and vehicle access routes 

 Works to the existing bridge over the River Witham 
 Open spaces 
 Hard and soft landscaping 
 Multi-storey car park providing up to 1,100 car parking 

spaces, motorcycle parking spaces, energy centres, and up 
to 823 cycle parking spaces  

 Servicing facilities providing up to 1,100 spaces, vehicular 
access and servicing facilities 
 

f. provided details of the policies pertaining to the application as follows: 
 

 Policy LP1: A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

 Policy LP2: The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy 

 Policy LP3: Level and Distribution of Growth 

 Policy LP5: Delivering Prosperity and Jobs 

 Policy LP6: Retail and Town Centres in Central Lincolnshire 

 Policy LP7: A Sustainable Visitor Economy 

 Policy LP9: Health and Wellbeing 

 Policy LP11: Affordable Housing 

 Policy LP12: Infrastructure to Support Growth 

 Policy LP13: Accessibility and Transport 

 Policy LP14: Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk 

 Policy LP16: Development on Land Affected by Contamination 

 Policy LP17 Landscape, Townscape and Views 

 Policy LP21: Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

 Policy LP24: Creation of New Open Space, Sports and Recreation 
Facilities 

 Policy LP25: The Historic Environment 

 Policy LP26: Design and Amenity 

 Policy LP29: Protecting Lincoln’s Setting and Character 

 Policy LP31: Lincoln’s Economy 

 Policy LP33: Lincoln's City Centre Primary Shopping Area and 
Central Mixed Use Area 

 Policy LP36: Access and Movement within the Lincoln Area 

 Policy LP37: Sub-division and multi-occupation of dwellings within 
Lincoln 

 National Planning Policy Framework  
 

g. outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise 
 

h. referred members to the update sheet which: 
 

 Provided clarification in relation to the request from the Education 
Authority for a payment towards the provision of education off-site. 

 Referred to an electronic copy of the briefing paper provided with 
the update sheet, produced on behalf of the applicant for 
distribution to members. 
 

i. advised members of the main issues to be considered by the application 
as follows:  
 

 The Application of Policies in the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan; 
11



 Environmental Impact Assessment; 

 The Principle of the Development; 

 Affordable Housing and Contributions to Service Provision; 

 The Impact of the Design of the Proposals; 

 The Implications of the Proposals upon Amenity; 

 Other Matters; and 

 The Planning Balance. 
 

j. concluded that: 
 

 The presumption in favour of sustainable development required by 
the National Planning Policy Framework would apply to the 
proposals as there would not be conflict with the three strands of 
sustainability that would apply to development as set out in the 
planning balance. Therefore, there would not be harm caused by 
approving the development.  

 As such, it was considered that the application should benefit from 
planning permission for the reasons identified and subject to the 
conditions outlined in the officer’s report; and the S106 agreement 
for the payments towards offsite provision of playing fields and play 
space; affordable housing; education and highway improvements. 

 
Members discussed the content of the report in further detail.  
 
Members raised concerns in relation to: 
 

 Existing traffic congestion/potential for further traffic congestion due to the 
location of the proposed scheme and its access point. 

 Effect on High Street shops/footfall. 

 Whether a mix of both student and domestic housing would work 
especially as University accommodation had the potential to remain 
unfilled. 

 The need for additional affordable housing on site. 

 Arrangements for relocation of existing businesses. 

 The need for the scheme to complement and not conflict with the City 

 The need for various methods of transport to be encouraged including 
new/existing cycle routes. 

 Matters of access, which needed to be carefully considered in consultation 
with the Highways Authority. 

 
Members offered support to the proposed scheme covering the following main 
points: 
 

 The Highways Authority had raised no objection to the proposed scheme. 

 New job opportunities would be created. 

 The existing site was outdated and needed refurbishment. 

 This was not a brand new development as shops already existed on site. 

 A greater variety of shops/leisure facilities was beneficial for both young 
and old. The city was lucky to have such a development coming forward. 

 The market force would dictate movement of shops away from the High 
Street although both areas should be promoted. 

 This development would form a part of the city centre, and was not 
separate to it. 

12



 There would always be traffic issues, however increased car parking 
spaces would be available both here and across the city. 

 
The Principal Planning Officer offered the following points of clarification to 
members: 
 

 Any concerns regarding vehicular access to the site would be mitigated by 
the provision of a waiting lane within the car park itself both inwards and 
outwards, to avoid queueing on the public highway. 

 With regards to impact on the city centre, a Planning Inspector Enquiry 
had suggested that one part of a city could not be capped or protected 
from another. 

 The applicant was working with the University regarding the need for 
student accommodation which would be derived from the University itself. 
The phased development for the site would allow this concern to be looked 
at in a timely manner. 

 An S106 contribution towards affordable housing off-site would serve our 
needs in this respect in place of affordable housing on-site, subject to 
Executive determination.  

 There would be a cycle track through the development on either side of the 
river with provision of 800 parking spaces for cyclists, mainly for the 
student accommodation. 

 There would be 55 active and 55 passive electric bays on site. 

 The proposed development was close to the Transport Hub/Railway 
Station. 

 The final end users of each retail block was not known at the current time, 
this was a matter for the applicant to discuss with tenants. 

 
RESOLVED that authority be delegated to the Planning Manager to grant outline 
planning permission subject to the issues covered by the planning conditions 
listed below and the signing of the S106 Agreement for the payments towards 
offsite provision of playing fields and play space; affordable housing; education 
and highway improvements. The development should therefore only be granted 
subject to the S106 and planning conditions covering the matters listed below:- 
 

 Time Limits and Submission of Reserved Matters; 

 Approved Plans and Documents; 

 Compliance with the Parameters and Design Codes (except where 
indicated otherwise, i.e. the river corridor and the student accommodation, 
as advised by Historic England / Conservation Officer and in the 
applicant’s assessment respectively); 

 Phasing Programme; 

 Samples of Materials (including hard surfaces and boundary treatments); 

 Large Scale Details of Façades; 

 Hard and Soft Landscaping; 

 Car Park Design; 

 Highway Access and Layout (including land saved for East West Link); 

 Travel Plan; 

 Street Furniture and Signage; 

 Construction Management (including delivery times and working hours, 
construction access and the location of site compounds); 

 Layout and Internal Arrangement of Residential Units; 

 Temporary Fencing and Enclosures (during construction); 

 Tree Protection and Works; 
13



 Waste Collection, Recycling and Storage; 

 Site Drainage (surface water drainage with no infiltration); 

 Design of Combined Heat and Power Plant and Associated Structures; 

 Details of Temporary Sales / Marketing Suites; 

 Cycle Parking; 

 Ecology (mitigation and enhancement; and precise location of deck areas 
to be informed by further assessment of immediate context prior to the 
submission of RM). 

 Flood Risk Mitigation, including floor levels; 

 Archaeology; 

 Contaminated Land; 

 Solar Glare mitigation; 

 Noise Assessment and Attenuation; and 

 Air Quality Mitigation and Electric Vehicle Recharging. 
 

18.  Application for Development: Queens Park Play Area, South Park, Lincoln.  
 

The Planning Manager: 
 

a. advised that this planning application was brought to Planning Committee 
for determination due to the applicant being the City of Lincoln Council 
 

b. described the application site at Queens Park play area, located at the 
western end of South Park, close to its junctions with St Catherine’s and 
High Street, located within a Green Wedge site abutting Conservation 
Area No. 4 'St Catherine’s 
 

c. advised that the play area included a variety of play equipment including a 
slide, swings and basketball hoop and court 
 

d. sought planning permission for the installation of a 4.7m high play 
equipment sited on an area of hardstanding between the existing slide and 
basketball court 

 
e. provided details of the policies pertaining to the application as follows: 

 

 Policy LP1: A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 9 

 Policy LP22: Green Wedges 56 

 Policy LP25: The Historic Environment 60 

 National Planning Policy Framework  
 

f. outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise 
 

g. advised members of the main issues to be considered by the application 
as follows:  
 

 National and Local Planning Policy   

 Impact on Green Wedge 

 Impact on the Setting of Conservation Area No. 4 
 

h. concluded that the proposed play equipment would be a beneficial addition 
to the established play area within the Green Wedge, and would not 
adversely affect the setting of the Conservation Area, in accordance with 
policies Policy LP22 'Green Wedges' and LP25 'Historic Environment' of 

14



the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017), and guidance within the 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012) 

 
Members discussed the content of the report in further detail.  
 
RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
Standard Conditions  
 
01) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 

years beginning with the date of this permission. 
   
  Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990. 
  
02) With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of 

this consent, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in 
accordance with the details submitted with the application. The works shall 
be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the approved plans 
and in any other approved documents forming part of the application. 

   
  Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the 

approved plans. 
 
Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works 
 
  None. 
   
Conditions to be discharged before use is implemented 
 
  None. 
  
Conditions to be adhered to at all times 
 
  None. 
 

15



This page is intentionally blank.



PLANNING COMMITTEE   19 JULY 2017  
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
WORK TO TREES IN CITY COUNCIL OWNERSHIP 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

COMMUNITIES AND ENVIRONMENT 

LEAD OFFICER STEVE BIRD – ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (COMMUNITIES & 
STREET SCENE) 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To advise Members of the reasons for proposed works to trees in City Council 

ownership, and to seek consent to progress the works identified. 
 

1.2 This list does not represent all the work undertaken to Council trees. It is all the 
instances where a tree is either identified for removal, or where a tree enjoys 
some element of protection under planning legislation, and thus formal consent 
is required. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 In accordance with the accepted policy, Committee’s views are sought in respect 
of proposed works to trees in City Council ownership, see Appendix A. 
 

2.2 The responsibility for the management of any given tree is determined by the 
ownership responsibilities of the land on which it stands. Trees within this 
schedule are therefore on land owned by the Council, with management 
responsibilities distributed according to the purpose of the land. 
 

3. Tree Assessment 
 

3.1 All tree cases are brought to this committee only after careful consideration and 
assessment by the Council’s Arboricultural Officer (together with independent 
advice where considered appropriate). 
 

3.2 All relevant Ward Councillors are notified of the proposed works for their 
respective wards prior to the submission of this report.                                  

3.3 Although the Council strives to replace any tree that has to be removed, in some 
instances it is not possible or desirable to replant a tree in either the exact 
location or of the same species. In these cases a replacement of an appropriate 
species is scheduled to be planted in an appropriate location within the vicinity. 
Tree planting is normally scheduled for the winter months following the removal. 
 

4. Resource Implications 

4.1 i) Finance 
 

The costs of any tree works arising from this report will be borne by the existing 
budgets. There are no other financial implications, capital or revenue.  
 

17

Item No. 3



4.2 ii) Staffing   N/A 
  

4.3 iii) Property/Land/ Accommodation Implications      N/A 
 

4.4 iv) Procurement 
      
All works arising from this report are undertaken by the Council’s grounds 
maintenance contractor. The contractor was appointed after an extensive 
competitive tendering exercise, ensuring that staff are all suitably trained, 
qualified, and experienced. The contract for this work was let in April 2006. 
 

5. Policy Implications 
 

5.1 (i) Strategic Priority                       N/A 
 

5.2 (ii) S.17 Crime and Disorder         N/A 
 

5.3 (iii) Equality and Diversity             N/A 
 

5.4 (iv) Environmental Sustainability   
  
The Council acknowledges the importance of trees and tree planting to the 
environment and its biodiversity objectives. Replacement trees are routinely 
scheduled wherever a tree has to be removed, in-line with Council policy.  
 

5.5 (v) Community Engagement/Communication   N/A 
 

6. Consultation and Communication     
  

6.1 All ward Councillors are informed of proposed works on this schedule, which are 
within their respective ward boundaries. 
 

6.2 The relevant portfolio holders are advised in advance in all instances where, in 
the judgement of officers, the matters arising within the report are likely to be 
sensitive or contentious. 
 

7. Legal Implications 
 

7.1 (i) Legal 
 

The City Council has a legal obligation to ensure that trees in Council                
ownership are maintained in a safe condition. Trees may be protected by the law 
in certain instances. Situations where this applies are normally in relation to 
planning legislation covering Conservation Areas, and Tree Preservation Orders. 
Where there is legal protection for a tree or trees, this is identified clearly in the 
appendices. 
 

7.2 (ii) Contractual     
 

See 4.4 above. 
 

 

18



8. Assessment of Options 
 

8.1 (i) Key Issues      
 
The work identified on the attached schedule represents the Arboricultural 
Officers advice to the Council relevant to the specific situation identified. This is 
a balance of assessment pertaining to the health of the tree, its environment, 
and any legal or health and safety concerns. In all instances the protection of 
the public is taken as paramount. Deviation from the recommendations for any 
particular situation may carry ramifications. These can be outlined by the 
Arboricultural Officer pertinent to any specific case.  
 

8.2 (ii)  Risk Assessment  
 
Where appropriate, the recommended actions within the schedule have been 
subject to a formal risk assessment. Failure to act on the recommendations of 
the Arboricultural Officer could leave the Council open to allegations that it has 
not acted responsibly in the discharge of its legal responsibilities. 
 

9. Recommendation 
 

9.1 That the works set out in the attached schedules be approved. 
 

Access to Information: 
Does the report contain 
exempt information, which 
would prejudice the public 
interest requirement if it 
was publicised? 
 

 
No 

Key Decision No 
 

Key Decision Reference 
No. 
 

                                           N/A 

Do the Exempt 
Information Categories 
Apply 
 

No 

Call In and Urgency: I s 
the decision one to which 
Rule 15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply? 
 

 
No 

List of Background 
Papers: 
 

                                Section file        Te 623 

Lead Officer:  Mr S. Bird,  
Assistant Director (Communities & Street Scene) 
Telephone 873421 
 

 
 
 
 

19



 
 

NOTIFICATION OF INTENDED WORK TO TREES AND HEDGES 
RELEVANT TO THEIR CITY COUNCIL OWNERSHIP STATUS. 

SCHEDULE No 7 / SCHEDULE DATE: 19/07/17 
 
 

Item 
No 

Status 
e.g. 
CAC 

Specific 
Location  

Tree Species 
and description 
/ reasons for 
work / Ward. 
 

Recommendation 

1 N/A Birchwood Nature 
Park, adjacent to 
pond. 

Birchwood Ward 
19 Willows and 
Poplars. 
Coppice the formerly 
pollarded stems and 
allow to regenerate. 
 
2 Birch and 2 Willow. 
Fell to allow safe and 
unobstructed access 
to the banks of the 
pond. 
 
 
 

Approve. 

2 N/A Birchwood Nature 
Park. Four grassland 
areas situated within 
the park area to the 
north of Chedburgh 
Close. 
 

Birchwood Ward 
Multiple self –set 
pioneer species of 
predominantly willow, 
birch and scrub are 
encroaching and 
shading 4 grassland 
areas. Fell to retain 
the grassland habitat 
and promote the 
biodiversity of the site. 
 
 
 

Approve. 

3 CAC City Hall, Orchard 
Street car park 

Carholme Ward 
1 Maple located near 
cycle storage area. 
Fell, the crown has 
extensive dieback. 
 
1 Ash. 
Crown lift to 4 metres 
agl. And reduce lower 
branches by 30% to 
remove end weight. 
 
 

Approve and replant with 1 
Norway Maple. 

20



 

4 CAC Adjacent to east 
wing end of City 
Hall, and Beaumont 
Fee DBG. 

Carholme Ward 
8 Maples and 4 
Sycamores. 
Reduce height of trees 
to prevent the 
obstruction of data 
communications for 
CCTV transmitters 
and receivers. 
 
 

Approve 

5 CAC Outside 19 Minster 
Yard. 
 

Castle Ward 
1 Sorbus. 
Notification of Intent to 
fell on behalf of Lincs 
County Council. The 
tree is dying. 
 

Approve and replant with 1 
Rowan in a suitable 

location. 

6 N/A Rear garden of 61 
Goldsmith Walk. 

Glebe Ward 
1 Self-set Sycamore 
and 2 Cypress. 
Fell as part of garden 
and access 
improvements to void 
property. 
 

Approve and replant with 1 
Maple and 2 Cherry trees 

in a suitable location. 

7 N/A Verge outside 76 
Ruskin Avenue. 

Glebe Ward 
1 Horse Chestnut. 
Notice of Intent to fell 
on behalf of Lincs. 
County Council. The 
tree has significant 
decay of the main 
stem. 
 

Approve and replant with a 
Field Maple in a suitable 

location. 

8 N/A Land to rear of 13 
Keadby Close. 
 

Hartsholme Ward 
1 Oak. 
Fell, the tree has 
extensive decay of the 
root buttress and is 
leaning. 
 

Approve and replant with 
an Oak. 

9 TPO Higgins Close, grass 
verge to rear of 77 
Fulmar Road. 
 

Hartsholme Ward 
1 Oak, 5 Birch, 1 
Beech and 1 Cherry. 
Prune to lift crown and 
allow unobstructed 
mower operations. 
 

Approve. 

10 TPO Fulmar Road, link 
path to rear of 4 
Doulton Close. 

Hartsholme Ward 
1 Birch. 
Crown lift to allow 
access for grass 
mowing operations. 
 

Approve. 

21



 

11 N/A Crematorium, 
Washingborough 
Road. 

Park Ward 
5 Hawthorns, 
Fell, the trees are in 
poor health and dying  
1 Ash. 
Fell, the tree is 
suppressed and has 
crown dieback. 
1 Lime. 
Fell, the tree has a 
large basal wound 
with decay present. 
1 Sycamore. 
Fell, the tree has poor 
form and is 
suppressed. 
2 Cherry. 
Fell, the trees have 
decay in the main 
stem. 
1 Rowan. 
Fell the tree has a 
basal cavity with 
decay present. 
1 Poplar. 
Fell, The tree has a 
history of large limb 
failure, a short safe 
useful life expectancy 
and removal would 
benefit healthier 
neighbouring trees. 
 

Approve and replant with 5 
Hawthorns, 2 Mountain 
Ash, 1 Lime, 1 Norway 

Maple and 3 Cherry trees. 
 

12 N/A Rear garden area of 
St Botolphs Court. 
 

Park Ward 
1 Cherry. 
Fell, the tree is 
infected with 
Ganoderma, a decay 
inducing fungus. 
 

Approve and replant with 1 
Cherry. 

     

 

22



Application Number: 2017/0750/TCO 

Site Address: Lincoln Central Railway Station, St Marys Street, Lincoln 

Target Date: 18th August 2017 

Agent Name: None 

Applicant Name: Mrs Kate Ellis 

Proposal: Removal of 5 mature London Plane trees as identified on Document 
1 and replacement planting of 5 new London Plane trees in 
appropriate tree pits as close to the original location of the existing 
trees as practicable. 
 

 
Background - Site Location and Description 
The proposed trees to be removed are located on the south side of St Mary’s Street with the 
railway station car park. Following an incident on Wednesday 28 June 2017, a tree of the same 
species, condition and within the same environment as the remaining trees, fell. 
 
As part of the consented Transport Hub scheme it is proposed to re-pave the area around the trees 
to create the new area of public realm linking the railway station with the new bus station. The 
applicants have stated that should work continue, there are no measures that could be taken that 
would ensure that the remaining trees would not fall down either as an immediate consequence of 
starting the works or at some time in the future. Therefore it is proposed to remove and replace the 
trees. 
 
Case Officer Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 06/07/2017 
 
Policies Referred to 
 
LP25: The Historic Environment 
LP26: Design and Amenity  
 
Issues 
 
Amenity Value  
Public Safety 
 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community Involvement, 
adopted May 2014.  
 
Public Consultation Responses 
 
No Responses Received 
 
Consideration 
 
Background 
Both the applicant and the City’s Arboricultural Officer have made an assessment of the trees on 
site. For the purposes of this assessment the trees have been number 1-5 from West to East.  
 
Tree 1 has some evidence of damage which has possibly occurred as a result of resurfacing. This 
tree could be worthy of a TPO. 
 
Tree 2 is showing signs of crown die back and has had the canopy reduced on the north and west 
side in the past. The current evidence is showing that there is damage to the root system as a 

23

Item No. 4a



result of repaving works carried out approximately 5 years ago. The advice is that this tree is not 
worthy of a TPO. 
 
Trees 3-5 It cannot be confirmed either way whether there is any root damage to the trees. Whilst 
the block paving is lifting there is no evidence to show that there is any damage to the trees and as 
such they are worthy of retention.  
 
Amenity Value 
 
Trees in a conservation area that are not protected by an Order are protected by the provisions in 
section 211 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. As part of the application the Local 
Planning Authority are required to decide whether the tree merits a Tree Preservation Order. 
  

The authority’s main consideration should be the amenity value of the tree. In addition, authorities 
must pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or 
appearance of the conservation area. 
 
‘Amenity’ is not defined in law, and is a matter of judgement and decision made on balance with 
other matters. Orders should only be used to protect selected trees if their removal would have a 
significant negative impact on the local environment and its enjoyment by the public.  
 
It is considered that whilst the removal of the trees would have a negative impact on visual amenity 
they would be replaced which would go some way to address their loss. As well as this the removal 
of the trees is to facilitate the wider public realm works proposed by the transport hub which would 
be of significant benefit to the public.  

The trees are be visible from St Mary’s Street and the Railway Station and due to their height can 
be seen in long range views from further along St Mary’s Street the west and from Pelham Bridge 
to the east.  However visibility alone is not sufficient to warrant a TPO to be made. 
 
The trees do make a positive contribution to the character and appearance of a conservation area. 
Therefore the replacement of the trees is welcomed by the planning authority and the City Council 
as applicant have made a commitment to ensure this happens.  

 
Public Safety 
On Wednesday 28 June 2017 a young man was driving his car into the station forecourt area when 
one of the London Plane trees fell on to his vehicle. Very fortunately, the man was uninjured but his 
vehicle was damaged. 
 
The tree involved was a mature London Plane, approximately 13 metres in height, with a crown in 
full leaf. The City Tree Officer could find no significant amounts of deadwood present in the crown, 
nor indications of crown dieback or symptoms of root related problems within it. The tree was 
located adjacent to the west of the present access / exit drive to the station car park and within a 
formerly paved area which is presently being redeveloped and remodelled.  
 
On inspection, the exposed root of the tree showed that at least two lateral buttress roots, one 
located on the north side and one on the south side of the tree base had suffered mechanical 
damage in the past, possibly through digger activity. Root development appeared to have been 
severely restricted and although fibrous roots were present there appeared to be only a few course 
roots that had undergone secondary thickening. A ducting pipe of approximately 100mm in 
diameter and covered with red and white tape runs directly under the root system at a depth of 
approximately 500mm below ground level. A large ball of concrete was also observed to be under 
the root plate and was not considered to have been applied recently. This collection of factors 
contributed to the tree falling.  
 
Investigations carried out by the applicants consultants and the City Council as planning authority 
have concluded that the consented resurfacing of the car park and footway would negatively 

24

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/conserving-and-enhancing-the-historic-environment#what-is-a-conservation-area
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/section/211
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/tree-preservation-orders-and-trees-in-conservation-areas#amenity-means
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/9/section/72


impact on the roots of the remaining trees. There is no evidence to prove whether this work would 
be safe or unsafe to the overall structure of the tree and whether this would definitely result in the 
trees falling in the future. However it is considered that there is greater risk with trees 1 and 2 and 
a potential risk for trees 3-5.  
 
The position of the London Plane trees on the frontage to the St Mary’s Street Railway station are 
such that they line a highway, pedestrian footpath and a busy carpark. Given that there is no 
restriction to the public accessing these areas the hazard of a tree falling is that it has the potential 
to cause multiple serious injuries including fatalities, damage to property and obstruction of the 
highway causing disruption to the central railway station, the highway and the pedestrian footpaths. 
 
Health & Safety at Work etc Act 1974 section 3 requires that the Council ensures that the transport 
hub works are undertaken in a safe manner so as to protect members of the public, failing to do so 
is an offence.  In addition the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015, 
regulation 8 places general duties on the Council as the client to ensure that those appointed to 
undertake the works do so in a manner that secures the health and safety of any person affected 
by the project, failing to do so is an offence. 
 
It is therefore considered that whilst some of these trees are of significant amenity value, the 
potential risk to human health is such that it outweighs the amenity benefit. 
 
Tree Replanting 
The City Council as applicant has confirmed that the 5 trees would be replaced by the same 
species, London Planes, in 1000litre tree pots and planted in suitable pits as per the new trees 
identified in the rest of the Transport Hub scheme. These trees will have a total height of around 
5m when planted and so will have some immediate amenity value and visual impact to offset the 
loss of the existing trees. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Whilst the trees offer a level of amenity it is considered that their removal would not have a 
significant negative impact on the Conservation Area. Whilst it has been identified that three of the 
trees are worthy of a TPO the potential risk to public safety has been highlighted by the applicant 
and it is therefore considered that in this case, on balance, the trees can be removed, subject to 
suitable replacements being planted as near to the original locations as possible.  
 
Application Determined within Target Date 
 
Yes 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the trees highlighted are not protected under a tree preservation order 
 

25



This page is intentionally blank.



Plans  

Site Location Plan  

 

Photos

 

27



 

 

28



 

 

29



This page is intentionally blank.



Application Number: 2017/0423/FUL 

Site Address: 19 St Catherines, Lincoln, Lincolnshire 

Target Date: 5th July 2017 

Agent Name: John Roberts Architects Ltd 

Applicant Name: Mr Hunter 

Proposal: Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 7 Bedroom House in 
Multiple Occupation (Sui Generis)(REVISED DESCRIPTION). 

 
Background - Site Location and Description 
 
This application for planning permission proposes to change the use of the property from doctors' 
surgery to a 7 bedroom house in multiple occupation. 
 
No 19 St Catherines is a two-storey, Victorian building facing onto St Catherines with vehicle 
access taken from Colgrave Street. The building was originally a residential house, semi-detached 
with No 17 St Catherines dating from 1871, but it has most recently been in use as South Park 
Doctors’ Surgery for over 35 years. The doctors surgery closed in March 2017.  
 
Site History 
 
No Relevant Site History 
 
Case Officer Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 14th June 2017 
 
Policies Referred to 
 
National Planning Policy Framework  
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan – Policy LP37 
 
Issues 
 
The issues raised by the application relate directly to Policy LP37: Sub-division and 
multi-occupation of dwellings within Lincoln of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan which states that 
the conversion or change of use of existing dwellings and buildings in other uses to self contained 
flats or shared accommodation including houses in multiple occupation will be supported where: 
 

 The existing dwelling or building is capable of conversion without causing harm to the 
amenities of future occupants, neighbours and the wider area; 

 The development will not lead to or increase an existing over-concentration of such issues 
on the area; 

 Adequate provision is made for external communal areas, bin storage and collection, and 
on-site parking and cycle storage unless it can be demonstrated that the site is sustainably 
located on a regular bus route or within walking distance of the city centre. 

 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community Involvement, 
adopted May 2014.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31

Item No. 4b



Statutory Consultation Responses 
 

Consultee Comment  

 
Highways & Planning 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Lincolnshire Police 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Lincoln Civic Trust 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
 
Public Consultation Responses 
 

Name Address  

Mr David Matson 10 Colegrave Street 
Potterhanworth 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DW                   

Miss Alison Read 44 Colegrave Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DR  

Miss Clare Satchwell 7 Colegrave Strret 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DR      

Mr And Mrs Bone 17 St Catherines 
Lincoln Lincolnshire 
LN5 8LW 

Miss Liza Beckitt 13 Colegrave Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DR  

Mr Martin Everitt 14 Colegrave Street 
Lincoln 
Ln58dw  

Mr Rob Hunter Sparkhouse 
Ropewalk 
Lincoln 
LN6 7DQ  

Mr Simon Sperrin 2 Colegrave Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DW  

Mrs Barbara Easy 15 Colegrave Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DR  

Mrs Pauline Brown 19 Colegrave Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DR  

Mr Roger Bone 17 St Catherines 
Lincoln 
LN58LW  

Mrs Joanne  Murray 56 Benson Crescent 
Doddington Road 
Lincoln 
LN6 3NU  

32



Name Address  

Mr David Matson 10 Colegrave Street 
Potterhanworth 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DW                   

Miss Alison Read 44 Colegrave Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DR  

Miss Clare Satchwell 7 Colegrave Strret 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DR      

Mr And Mrs Bone 17 St Catherines 
Lincoln Lincolnshire 
LN5 8LW 

Miss Liza Beckitt 13 Colegrave Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DR  

Mr Martin Everitt 14 Colegrave Street 
Lincoln 
Ln58dw  

Mr Rob Hunter Sparkhouse 
Ropewalk 
Lincoln 
LN6 7DQ  

Mr Simon Sperrin 2 Colegrave Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DW  

Mrs Barbara Easy 15 Colegrave Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DR  

Mrs Pauline Brown 19 Colegrave Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DR  

Mr Roger Bone 17 St Catherines 
Lincoln 
LN58LW  

Mrs Joanne  Murray 56 Benson Crescent 
Doddington Road 
Lincoln 
LN6 3NU  

Mr Simon Sperrin 2 Colegrave Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 8DW 

 
Consideration 
 
Residential Amenity 

The original application proposed a 9 bedroom house of multiple occupation. However it was 

considered that this number of bedrooms would result in a harmful impact on the surrounding area 

and would provide an unacceptable standard of accommodation for the future occupants of the 

property. The previous layout had no provision for a communal living space with the front room 

being used as a bedroom. Changing this both provides this communal space as well as providing a 

traditional residential arrangement of the property. Two small bedrooms have also been 

reconfigured to form one bedroom proving a better level of accommodation for the future 

occupants.  

 

33



The layout of the property with a hallway on the adjoining wall with No.17, at ground and first floor, 

means that there is a suitable distance between the adjoining rooms to ensure that the transfer of 

noise is minimised.  

 

There are concerns from local residents that the size of the property would give rise to harmful 

impacts on the surrounding area due to the future occupants and size of the dwelling. The number 

of bedspaces has been reduced with bedrooms of a suitable size in what is a large property. Whilst 

the planning authority cannot control who resides in the property the applicants have confirmed 

that they do not intend to rent the property to students, rather to young professionals. However the 

issue is whether the number of bedrooms is appropriate and it is considered that now the number 

has been reduced there is no reason why the property would have a harmful impact above the 

previous use as a doctors surgery.  

 

Over-concentration of such issues on the area 

Based on information currently held by the Planning Authority the use of the property as a HMO 

would not exceed the 10% threshold within a 100m radius. Nor would it result in a row of three 

HMO’s. Whilst a number of objections have been received from residents that the proposed 

change of use would result in too many HMOs in the area it is considered that based on the policy 

thresholds there is no reason to refuse the application due to an over concentration of the use in 

this area.  

Adequate provision for external communal areas 
Bin storage  
Provision for bin storage is provided to the side of the property and is within suitable distance of the 
highway for bins to be presented to the roadside when required.  
 
Highways and parking 

A number of objections have been received from local residents about the impacts on on street 

parking as a result of the proposed development. Due to the past use of the property there is off 

street parking for at least 7 cars, meaning one space per bedroom. It is considered that this ratio is 

more than acceptable and it much better than would ordinarily be achieved for developments of 

this type. With this amount of off street parking it is not considered that the development would add 

to the on street parking issues currently of concern to local residents. 

 

No objections have been received from the Highways Authority.  

 
Conclusion 
 
It is considered that the proposed change of use would meet the tests of Policy LP37 of the Central 
Lincolnshire Local Plan. The use would not lead to an over intensification of multiple occupation 
dwellings in the immediate area and the on street parking would provide a facility not seen with 
most properties I this area and therefore would not add to the current parking issues in the area.  
 
Application Determined within Target Date 
 
Yes within an agreed extended period for determination.  
 
Recommendation 
 
That the application is Granted Conditionally  
 
Conditions 
 
Development to be commenced within three years 
Development to be carried out in accordance with the submitted floor plan. 

34



19 St Catherines  
 
Plans 
 
Site Location Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35



Layout Plan 
 

 
 
Floor Plans 
 

 
 

36



 
 
Photos 
 

 

37



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consultee Comments 
 

 

 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE 
 

POLICE HEADQUARTERS 

PO Box 999 

LINCOLN  LN5 7PH 

Fax:  (01522) 558128  

DDI:  (01522) 558292 

email  

john.manuel@lincs.pnn.police.uk 

 

 

 

 

Your Ref: App. 2017/0423/FUL                                                         11th May 2017 

  

Development & Environmental Services 

City Hall, Beaumont Fee 

Lincoln, LN1 1DF 

Re –19 St Catherines Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN5 8LT (HMO)  
 

Thank you for your correspondence and opportunity to comment on the proposed 

development. I would request that you consider the following points that if adhered to would 

help reduce the opportunity for crime and increase the safety and sustainability of the 

development. 

Historically HMOs can become vulnerable to crime and anti-social behaviour therefore it is 

important that the best security arrangements and provision are planned for such premises. 

39



Lincolnshire Police has no formal objections to the planning application in principle but would 

recommend that the initial advisory recommendations are implemented. 

The new regulations in respect of approved windows and doors may apply to this 

development and presume that compliance will be ensured by way of Building Regulations. 

External doors and windows 

Building Regulations (October 1st 2015) provides that for the first time all new homes will be 

included within Approved Document Q: Security – Dwellings (ADQ). 

Approved document Q applies to all new dwellings including those resulting from change of 

use, such as commercial premises, warehouse and barns undergoing conversions into 

dwellings. It also applies within Conservation Areas. 

This will include doors at the entrance to dwellings, including all doors to flats or apartments, 

communal doors to multi-occupancy developments and garage doors where there is a direct 

access to the premises. Where bespoke timber doors are proposed, there is a technical 

specification in Appendix B of the document that must be met. 

Windows: in respect of ground floor, basement and other easily accessible locations. 

The secured by design requirement for all dwelling external doors is PAS 24.2016 (doors of 

an enhanced Security) or WCL 1 (WCL 1 is the reference number for PAS 23/24 and is 

published by Warrington Certification Laboratories).  

All ground floor windows and doors and those that are easily accessible from the ground must 

conform to improved security standard PAS24:2016 or equivalent approved standard. 

Individual Flat or Unit Doors. 

Door-sets providing access to the individual bedrooms shall be of robust construction and fire 

rated (FD30 or higher), and installed with a lock certificated to BS 8621 or PAS 8621, and will 

be fitted with a minimum of two hinge bolts or hinges with a similar integral facility to ensure 

protection in the event of a hinge failure under following a criminal attack, and installed with a 

securely fixed, robust planted stop, OR Shall meet the same physical specification as ‘front 

door’ (paragraphs 21, excluding any requirements for postal delivery). 

Lighting 

Lighting should be designed to cover the external doors and be controlled by photoelectric cell 

(dusk to dawn) with a manual override.  The use of low consumption lamps with an efficacy of 

greater than 40 lumens per circuit watt is required; it is recommended that they be positioned 

to prevent possible attack.  

Bin Storage 

Internal communal bin and bicycle stores within blocks of flats must have no windows and be 

fitted with a secure door set that meets the same physical specification as ‘front door’ and 

specifically Section 2, paragraphs 21.1 to 21.6 and 21.8 to 21.13. 

This will ensure that such stores are only accessible to residents. The locking system must be 

operable from the inner face by use of a thumb turn to ensure that residents are not 

accidentally locked in by another person. A bicycle store must also be provided with stands 

with secure anchor points or secure cycle stands. 

External bins stores and home composting containers (supplied to meet ‘Code for Sustainable 

Homes’ ‘Was 3’) should be sited in such a way that they cannot be used as a climbing aid to 

commit crime. 

Intruder Alarm 

40



Where an intruder alarm is installed it should be complaint and meet the standards of BSEN 

50131. It is recommended that any alarms system is provided and installed by a police 

approved company registered with the National Security Inspectorate (NSI) or the Security 

Systems & Alarms Inspection Board (SSAIB). It is also important that residents are clearly 

instructed in its use. 

Utilities 

In order to reduce the opportunities for theft by ‘bogus officials’ the utility meters should, where 

possible, be located to the outside of the dwelling at a point where they can be overlooked. 

This will negate the need for an official to enter the building in order to read a meter, which will 

in turn reduce the opportunity for distraction burglary. Where possible utility meters in multi 

occupancy developments should be located on the ground floor between access controlled 

doors (air lock system) so that access can be restricted to the meters  

 

Note 33.1: Where a utility provider refuses to provide external meters, and there is an obvious 

(historic) risk of distraction burglary within the location, the developer should consider an 

alternative supplier. 

Landscaping 

Landscaping should not impede the opportunity for natural surveillance and must avoid the 

creation of areas of concealment.  Any landscaping should be kept to a maximum growth 

height of 1 metre.  Whilst any tree should be pruned to a minimum height of 2 metres, thereby 

maintaining a clear field of vision around the development. Trees when fully grown should not 

mask any lighting columns or become climbing aids. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or clarification. 

Please refer to New Homes 2016 which can be located on www.securedbydesign.com New 
Homes 2016 36.1 this includes details of the criteria for bespoke window fittings that may 
apply to this development. 

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract.  Neither the 

Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the advice given.  

However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce the opportunity for crimes to be 

committed. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

John Manuel MA BA(Hons) PGCE Dip Bus. 

Force Crime Prevention Design Advisor 

 
 
Consultee Comments for Planning Application 
2017/0423/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0423/FUL 
Address: 19 St Catherines Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8LT 
Proposal: Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 9 Bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation 
(Sui Generis). 
Case Officer: null 
Consultee Details 

41

http://www.securedbydesign.com/


Name: Ms Catherine Waby 
Address: St Mary's Guildhall, 385 High Street, Lincoln LN5 7SF 
Email: lincolncivictrust@btconnect.com 
On Behalf Of: Lincoln Civic Trust 
Comments 
No Objection 
 
 
 
 

  

 

Environment & Economy 

Unit 4, Witham Park House 
Waterside South, Lincoln LN5 7JN 
Tel:   (01522) 782070 
E-Mail:Highwayssudssupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

To: Lincoln City Council Application Ref: 2017/0423/FUL 

 

With reference to this application dated 9 May 2017, relating to the following proposed 

development: 

Address or location    

 

19 St Catherines, Lincoln 

Date application referred by the LPA  

 10 May 2017 

Type of application:  Outline/Full/RM/: 

Full Planning Application 

 

Description of development 

Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 9 Bedroom House in Multiple Occupation 

(Sui Generis) 

Notice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local Flood 

Authority: 

 

 Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission. 

 

CONDITIONS (INCLUDING REASONS) /REASONS FOR REFUSAL/ADDITIONAL 

INFORMATION REQUIRED 

NO OBS - Having given due regard to the appropriate local and national planning policy guidance 

(in particular the National Planning Policy Framework), Lincolnshire County Council (as Highway 

Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) has concluded that the proposed development is 

42



acceptable.  Accordingly, Lincolnshire County Council (as Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood 

Authority) does not wish to object to this planning application. 

 

Case Officer: John Clifton 

for Mark Welsh 

Flood Risk and Development Manager 

Date:  02/06/17 

 

 

43



Neighbour comments 
 
Comments for Planning Application 2017/0423/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0423/FUL 
Address: 19 St Catherines Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8LT 
Proposal: Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 9 Bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation 
(Sui Generis). 
Case Officer: null 
Customer Details 
Name: Miss Alison Read 
Address: 44 Colegrave Street Lincoln 
Comment Details 
Commenter Type: Neighbour 
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application 
Comment Reasons: 
Comment:I strongly object to any house of multiple occupation on the grounds of the 
welfare of the poorest members of our society being crammed into housing simply to 
satisfy the landlords greed. 
It is not a standard of housing that anyone should be submitted to in todays society. 
Colegrave street is a good neighbourly area and you only have to look at Altham 
Terrace to realise that encouraging this type of housing ruins a street and leads to its 
degradation. After all why should these tenants be bothered about their homes, 
about the street, when they are treated to such appalling living spaces in the first 
place in which they cannot possibly aspire to be proper homes in the first place. We 
already have one HMO on the street, this should be enough to cope with, the house 
in question already brings down the area, bins are left out, there is noise and 
shouting, and to be honest I am glad not to be next door, if this one goes ahead, 
then I fear all the larger house in the area will follow, families will move out and 
parking will be impossible. I hope this application is refused and the new owners 
encouraged to have less occupants and give each more space to live and breathe in. 
 
 
Comments for Planning Application 2017/0423/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0423/FUL 
Address: 19 St Catherines Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8LT 
Proposal: Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 9 Bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation 
(Sui Generis). 
Case Officer: null 
Customer Details 
Name: Miss Clare Satchwell 
Address: 7 Colegrave Strret Lincoln 
Comment Details 
Commenter Type: Neighbour 
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application 
Comment Reasons: 

44



Comment:Turning this property into a MO of this scale will only have a detrimental 
impact on the current residents of this area. This is yet another example of 
developers squeezing properties/people onto smaller and smaller plots with the only 
purpose being financial gain. 
The impact of this ever growing population in the small St Catherine's area on local 
services will be damaging (doctors, schools, drainage, policing etc) 
The parking situation in this predominantly terraced area is already an issue with 
many properties having no off street parking. The 8 parking spaces included in this 
plan will do little to alleviate the increase in traffic/parking this large scale occupancy 
will potentially create. 
The creation of two decent sized flats would attract young couples/small families to 
the area, in keeping with much of the current population, instead of individuals likely 
to dwell in shared accommodation. 
This kind of development is morally wrong and benefits no one but the developer. 
This relentless pursuit of profit, resulting in overcrowding of this type, shows a  
distinct lack of care for those who end up inhabiting such properties. 
 
 
Comments for Planning Application 2017/0423/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0423/FUL 
Address: 19 St Catherines Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8LT 
Proposal: Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 9 Bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation 
(Sui Generis). 
Case Officer: null 
Customer Details 
Name: Miss Liza Beckitt 
Address: 13 Colegrave Street Lincoln 
Comment Details 
Commenter Type: Neighbour 
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application 
Comment Reasons: 
Comment:I object to this planning application on the basis that I feel that the HIMO 
would not benefit the area. The St. Catherines area is a family-orientated area, and 
this sort of property does not add to the area. There are already several houses of 
this type on Newark Road and St Catherines, and they are often in a poor state, due 
to landlords not looking after the properties properly. 
I also have concerns about parking in the surrounding streets, as there could be up 
to 14 cars at the property if there are 14 people living there. As there are only 8 
proposed parking spaces, this could mean another 6 cars parking in this area, which 
would add to the parking and congestion problems, especially when there are 
football games or when the fair is at the South Common. This is exacerbated due to 
the new developments on St Catherines Road. 
I feel that it would be more appropriate to convert the property into family homes or 
flats with a lower density, so that the character of the area is maintained. 
 
 
 
 

45



Comments for Planning Application 2017/0423/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0423/FUL 
Address: 19 St Catherines Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8LT 
Proposal: Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 9 Bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation 
(Sui Generis). 
Case Officer: null 
Customer Details 
Name: Mr David Matson 
Address: 10 Colegrave Street, Potterhanworth Lincoln 
Comment Details 
Commenter Type: Neighbour 
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application 
Comment Reasons: 
Comment:It's clear the number of car parking spaces is not enough for the amount of 
people that would be living here. If all rooms are rented to full occupancy and all of 
these people own a vehicle 8 spaces is clearly not enough for 14 people having their 
own vehicles and this still wouldn't account for visiting vehicles to the property. 
This would then mean an overspill of vehicles onto Colegrave street and the 
surrounding area. 
This is a problem we are already familiar with as a similar issue already affects 
Colegrave street with the volume of vehicles using St Catherine's Mews. The 
planned change to this property will only make this situation worse. 
Also in the immediate area there is the Priory centre which holds various events on a 
regular basis, this also causes an overspill of cars into the street as their parking is 
limited. 
Being extremely close to Lincoln City football club and vehicles having the use of the 
south commen for parking during matches etc also increases the volume of traffic 
and parking in the vacintiy, along with other ad hoc events that are held on the 
commen e.g. The fair and Circus. As it stands the volume of traffic that is already 
accessing this area and the volume of cars that are trying to use Colegrave street for 
parking is already at a maximum level I would suggest. 
We already face ongoing issues with large goods vehicles using the street to access 
the factory at the end of the road. Residents on Colegrave street continuously have 
damage to their own vehicles which is caused by excess cars being parked on the 
street therefore limiting the space in the road for larger vehicles to pass through. 
Footpaths cannot be used as people are parking their cars on them. 
Therefore I believe the current area cannot accommodate a property of this nature. 
 
 
Comments for Planning Application 2017/0423/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0423/FUL 
Address: 19 St Catherines Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8LT 
Proposal: Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 9 Bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation 
(Sui Generis). 
Case Officer: null 
 

46



Customer Details 
Name: Mrs Barbara Easy 
Address: 15 Colegrave Street Lincoln 
Comment Details 
Commenter Type: Neighbour 
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application 
Comment Reasons: 
Comment:The parking on this street is already ridiculous. The proposed 
development is going to cause problems & this street is already a safety hazard with 
regards to the road & the pavements. 
There are too many cars on this street already. Many houses have multiple vehicles 
& we struggle already. My husband has to walk in the road as cars are on the 
pavement & he is 81 & had multiple strokes. To only have 8 parking spaces for 14 
occupants is utterly ridiculous. 
 
 
Comments for Planning Application 2017/0423/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0423/FUL 
Address: 19 St Catherines Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8LT 
Proposal: Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 9 Bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation 
(Sui Generis). 
Case Officer: null 
Customer Details 
Name: Mrs Joanne Murray 
Address: 56 Benson Crescent Doddington Road Lincoln 
Comment Details 
Commenter Type: Member of the Public 
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application 
Comment Reasons: 
Comment:My parents live on Colegrave Street & I visit regularly as my elderly father 
is in very ill health. There have been many times that I have to find a street nearby 
as I am unable to park on the street. There are families with multiple vehicles on this 
street & barely enough spaces for everyone as it is. I have no problem with turning 
the doctors into homes but the lack of parking is rediculous. If a family has more than 
1 car or have visitors then where can anyone park? Also my very elderly father has 
to walk on the road as cars park right up on the path. This is going to get worse, if 
that's possible. No proper thought given to an ongoing problem.! 
 
 
Comments for Planning Application 2017/0423/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0423/FUL 
Address: 19 St Catherines Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8LT 
Proposal: Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 9 Bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation 
(Sui Generis). 
Case Officer: null 
 

47



Customer Details 
Name: Mrs Pauline Brown 
Address: 19 Colegrave Street Lincoln 
Comment Details 
Commenter Type: Neighbour 
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application 
Comment Reasons: 
Comment:I object to this development. Not because of the house but the lack of 
parking is utterly ridiculous. There is barely the parking for people who have lived on 
the street for years, so if there is more about to come where will we all go.?! 
Everyone parks on the path already which is a safety aspect. It's stupid.!! 
 
 

48



 

49



 
    Mr and Mrs Bone  
 
Comments for Planning Application 2017/0423/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0423/FUL 
Address: 19 St Catherines Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8LT 
Proposal: Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 9 Bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation 
(Sui Generis). 
Case Officer: null 
Customer Details 
Name: Mr simon sperrin 
Address: 2 Colegrave Street Lincoln 
Comment Details 
Commenter Type: Neighbour 
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application 
Comment Reasons: 
Comment:The thought of turning this property into yet another HIMO is utterly 
ridiculous,9 bedrooms with potential 14 people crammed inside would completely 
alter the nature of the whole street. Colegrave Street is a quiet family oriented street 
with many residents living here for many years,to add another HIMO will have a 
detrimental effect to the whole street.We are already suffering from anti social 
behaviour from the one HIMO on the street already. Car parking is already a major 
problem on the street,8 car parking spaces when there is only room for 4 cars to 
manoeuvre safely in and out sums up this application .We all know that the extra 
cars will park on the street causing even more congestion. 
The Article 4 directive was supposed to stop/reduce this type of development in 
these types of areas,don't let another street be taken over by the HIMO monster ,as 
was the case in the West End of the city 
 
 
Comments for Planning Application 2017/0423/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0423/FUL 
Address: 19 St Catherines Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8LT 
Proposal: Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 9 Bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation 
(Sui Generis). 
Case Officer: null 

50



Customer Details 
Name: Mr Martin Everitt 
Address: 14 Colegrave Street Lincoln 
Comment Details 
Commenter Type: Neighbour 
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application 
Comment Reasons: 
Comment:I'm concerned that the dwelling doesn't have enough parking to support 
the potential occupancy. Patients from the surgery, when it was in use would park on 
Colegrave street and I expect tenants of the new proposed property to do the same. 
I often struggle to get parked on Colegrsve street due to a general shortage of 
spaces and I live here. 
 
 
Comments received after the application was amended 
 
Comments for Planning Application 2017/0423/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0423/FUL 
Address: 19 St Catherines Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8LT 
Proposal: Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 7 Bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation 
(Sui Generis)(REVISED DESCRIPTION). 
Case Officer: Lana Meddings 
Customer Details 
Name: Mr Roger Bone 
Address: 17 St Catherines Lincoln 
Comment Details 
Commenter Type: Neighbour 
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application 
Comment Reasons: 
Comment:This alteration to the original application (9 letting rooms down to 7) was 
expected, but does not change our views in any way, as it does nothing to answer or 
allay the concerns we expressed in our letter regarding the original application. 
Basically this new application changes nothing. 
Should the Planning Department feel inclined to approve this application, could we 
request that it is passed to the Planning Committee for a decision 
 
 
 
 
Comments for Planning Application 2017/0423/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0423/FUL 
Address: 19 St Catherines Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8LT 
Proposal: Change of Use from Doctors' Surgery (D1) to 7 Bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation 
(Sui Generis)(REVISED DESCRIPTION). 
Case Officer: Lana Meddings 
Customer Details 

51



Name: Mr simon sperrin 
Address: 2 colegrave street lincoln 
Comment Details 
Commenter Type: Neighbour 
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application 
Comment Reasons: 
Comment:The planned reduction from 9 beds to 7 will not alter my original 
objection.This is a family based street and the introduction of such a large HIMO 
would impact the whole nature of the area. With planning approved for this project i 
feel many more properties will be turned into HIMO's 

52



Application Number: 2017/0442/FUL 

Site Address: Land To Rear Of 110 Longdales Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire 

Target Date: 29th June 2017 

Agent Name: King Design Lincoln Ltd 

Applicant Name: Mrs D McRubbie 

Proposal: Erection of a two storey, three bedroom dwellinghouse 

 
Background - Site Location and Description 
 
The application site is situated to the rear of a two-storey host property which fronts 
Longdales Road. This has a large rear garden which slopes slightly down to Aubourn 
Avenue, which is situated to the north of the site. Aubourn Avenue itself connects 
Ravendale Drive and Laughton Way on Ermine East housing estate, with Manton Road 
and Harpswell Road also served off this road in proximity to the site. 
 
The application is for the erection of a single dwelling which would front Aubourn Avenue 
and would incorporate two floors. The top floor would be within the roof space of the 
dwelling and would be served by dormer windows fronting Aubourn Avenue and rooflights 
to the rear. The dwelling would incorporate 3 bedrooms (two of which have an ensuite, one 
upstairs and one downstairs; and there is a further bedroom upstairs along with a 
bathroom). The remainder of the ground floor incorporates a kitchen / dining room, lounge, 
utility and w.c. The property would be accessed directly from Aubourn Avenue and include 
two car parking spaces. 
 
The proposals suggest new fencing to the south and east; and utilising an existing 1.8m 
fence to west. There would be a new privet to frontage, replacing an existing hedge; and 
trees to rear. 
 
Site History 
 
There was an application approved by the Planning Committee in June 2013 for the 
erection of a dwelling to the rear of 116 Longdales Road (reference 2013/0222/F). 
 
Site History 
 
No Relevant Site History 
 
Case Officer Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 26th June 2017 
 
Policies Referred to 
 
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (Adopted April 2017) 
Policy LP1 A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
Policy LP2 The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy 
Policy LP3 Level and Distribution of Growth 
Policy LP4 Growth in Villages 
Policy LP5 Delivering Prosperity and Jobs 
Policy LP13 Accessibility and Transport 
Policy LP14 Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk 
Policy LP16 Development on Land affected by Contamination 

53

Item No. 4c



Policy LP21 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
Policy LP26 Design and Amenity 
Policy LP36 Access and Movement within the Lincoln Area 
 
Core Strategy & Development Management Policies of the Lincolnshire Minerals & Waste 
Local Plan (Adopted June 2016) 
Policy M11 Safeguarding of Mineral Resources 
 
National Planning Policy Framework  
 
Issues 
 
In this instance the main issues relevant to the consideration of the application are as 
follows: 

1. The Principle of the Development; 
2. The Impact of the Design of the Proposals; 
3. The Implications of the Proposals upon Amenity; 
4. Other Matters; and 
5. The Planning Balance. 

 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement, adopted May 2014.  
 
Statutory Consultation Responses 
 

Consultee Comment  

 
Highways & Planning 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Public Consultation Responses 
 

Name Address  

Mrs Susan Hall 43 Aubourn Avenue 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 2JW  

Mr P Flood 41 Aubourn Avenue 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 2JW  

Mr Colin Pell 39 Aubourn Avenue 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 2JW    

Mrs J F Hardesty 106 Longdales Road 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 2JT  

54



Mr Denis Neill 9 Harpswell Road 
Lincoln 
LN2 2JH  

Mr Clifford Hall 43 Aubourn Avenue 
Lincoln 
LN2 2JW  

Mr Trevor Vernon 30 Aubourn Avenue 
Lincoln 
LN2 2JW  

Mr Victor Bell 11 Harpswell Road 
Lincoln 
LN2 2JH  

Mr + Mrs Pearson 4 Manton Road 
Lincoln 
LN2 2JL  

Mr R Brown 32 Aubourn Avenue 
Lincoln 
LN2 2JW  

Mr David Tonge 1 Manton Road 
Lincoln 
LN2 2JL  

Mr Michael Smith 45 Aubourn Avenue 
Lincoln 
LN2 2JW  

Mrs Liz Maxwell 110 Searby Road 
Lincoln 
LN2 4DT  

Mr Philip Kettlewell 26 Aubourn Ave 
Lincoln 
LN2 2JW 

 
Consideration 
 
1) The Principle of the Development  

 
a) Relevant Planning Policies 
 
i) Sustainable Development and Housing Supply 
 
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and S70(2) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. The National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) is a material 
consideration in determining planning applications. Framework paragraph 215 indicates 
that due weight should be given to relevant policies in the development plan according to 
their consistency with the Framework i.e. the closer the policies in the plan to the policies 
in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given. 
 
The development plan comprises the recently adopted Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (the 
Plan) and during its examination the policies therein were tested for their compliance with 
the Framework. 
 

55



Paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) outlines the 
following in relation to the principle of development:  
 
"At the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework is a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development, which should be seen as a golden thread running through both 
plan making and decision taking. 
 
For decision taking this means (unless material considerations indicate otherwise): 

 approving development proposals that accord with the development plan without 
delay; and 

 where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out of date, 
granting permission unless: 

 any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework 
taken as a whole; or 

 specific policies in this Framework indicate development should be restricted.  
 
In terms of sustainable development, Paragraph 7 of the Framework suggests that there 
are three dimensions: economic, social and environmental. “These dimensions give rise to 
the need for the planning system to perform a number of roles: 

 an economic role – contributing to building a strong, responsive and competitive 
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right 
places and at the right time to support growth and innovation; and by identifying and 
coordinating development requirements, including the provision of infrastructure; 

 a social role – supporting strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by providing the 
supply of housing required to meet the needs of present and future generations; 
and by creating a high quality built environment, with accessible local services that 
reflect the community’s needs and support its health, social and cultural well-being; 
and 

 an environmental role – contributing to protecting and enhancing our natural, built 
and historic environment; and, as part of this, helping to improve biodiversity, use 
natural resources prudently, minimise waste and pollution, and mitigate and adapt 
to climate change including moving to a low carbon economy.” 

 
Policy LP1 of the Plan supports this approach and advocates that proposals that accord 
with the Plan should be approved, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
In terms of the spatial dimension of sustainability, proposals need to demonstrate that they 
contribute to the creation of a strong, cohesive and inclusive community, making use of 
previously developed land and enable larger numbers of people to access jobs, services 
and facilities locally, whilst not affecting the delivery of allocated sites and strengthening 
the role of Lincoln (Policy LP2). Meanwhile, Policy LP3 sets out how growth would be 
prioritised and Lincoln is the main focus. 
 
ii) The Land Use Classification of the Site 
 
The application site is shown on Inset Map 47 as a Site Specific Minerals Safeguarding 
Area but this is not a designation as there are no mineral policies within the Local Plan. 
The designation relates to the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan Core Strategy 
and Development Management Policies (Adopted June 2016), Policy M11 of which deals 
with the ‘Safeguarding of Mineral Resources’ and is a material consideration. Accordingly, 
the policy suggests:- 

56



Applications for non-minerals development in a minerals safeguarding area must be 
accompanied by a Minerals Assessment. Planning permission will be granted for 
development within a Minerals Safeguarding Area provided that it would not sterilise 
mineral resources within the Mineral Safeguarding Areas or prevent future minerals 
extraction on neighbouring land. Where this is not the case, planning permission will be 
granted when: 

 the applicant can demonstrate to the Mineral Planning Authority that prior extraction 
of the mineral would be impracticable, and that the development could not 
reasonably be sited elsewhere; or 

 the incompatible development is of a temporary nature and can be completed and 
the site restored to a condition that does not inhibit extraction within the timescale 
that the mineral is likely to be needed; or 

 there is an overriding need for the development to meet local economic needs, and 
the development could not reasonably be sited elsewhere; or 

 the development is of a minor nature which would have a negligible impact with 
respect to sterilising the mineral resource; or 

 the development is, or forms part of, an allocation in the Development Plan. 
 
iii) Sustainable Access, Highway Safety and Traffic Capacity  
 
A number of policies are relevant to the access, parking and highway design of residential 
proposals. In the context of Paragraph 32 of the Framework, the residual cumulative 
impacts of the development would need to be severe for proposals to warrant refusal. 
Meanwhile, Paragraph 35 requires that: “developments should be located and designed 
where practical to [amongst other things] give priority to pedestrian and cycle movements, 
and have access to high quality public transport facilities; and should be located and 
designed where practical to create safe and secure layouts which minimise conflicts 
between traffic and cyclists or pedestrians, avoiding street clutter and where appropriate 
establishing home zones". 
 
Policy LP13 of the Plan deals with transport and the key points of the policy are that “all 
developments should demonstrate, where appropriate, that they have had regard to the 
following criteria: 

a) Located where travel can be minimised and the use of sustainable transport modes 
maximised; 

b) Minimise additional travel demand through the use of measures such as travel 
planning, safe and convenient public transport, walking and cycling links and 
integration with existing infrastructure; 

c) Should provide well designed, safe and convenient access for all, giving priority to 
the needs of pedestrians, cyclists, people with impaired mobility and users of public 
transport by providing a network of pedestrian and cycle routes and green corridors, 
linking to existing routes where opportunities exist, that give easy access and 
permeability to adjacent areas” 

 
There are also transport measures referred to in Policy LP36, which more specifically 
refers to development in the ‘Lincoln Area’, the key measures add to and reinforce the 
criteria within Policies LP5 and LP13. As such, they are intended to reduce the impact 
upon the local highway network and improve opportunities for modal shift away from the 
private car. 
 

57



iv) Air Quality 
 
Paragraph 109 of the NPPF introduces the section in relation to the conservation and 
enhancement of the natural environment. Given that the site is located adjacent within the 
Air Quality Management Areas (declared by the Council due to the likely exceedance of 
the national air quality objectives for nitrogen dioxide and particulate matter), this section 
of the NPPF should be given great weight. It states that “the planning system should 
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by…preventing both new and 
existing development from contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from, or being 
adversely affected by unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution or land 
instability”. 
 
Paragraph 120 sets the scene and refers to development being “appropriate for its 
location”. It goes on to say that “the effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on 
health, the natural environment or general amenity, and the potential sensitivity of the area 
or proposed development to adverse effects from pollution, should be taken into account.” 
Paragraph 124 refers in more detail to the implications of the location of development 
within an Air Quality Management Area and requires that “planning decisions should 
ensure that any new development in Air Quality Management Areas is consistent with the 
local air quality action plan”. 
 
Meanwhile, Policy LP13 of the Plan also refers to air quality and requires that “all 
developments should demonstrate, where appropriate, that they…ensure allowance is 
made for low and ultra-low emission vehicle refuelling infrastructure.” 
 
b) Sustainable Development and Housing Supply 
  
The Council’s current housing supply was considered as part of the preparation of the 
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan and evidence currently available to officers indicates that 
the Council is able to demonstrate a five-year supply, as such the local development plan 
policies can be considered up to date and there is not pressure for the Council to approve 
development which may not otherwise satisfy the three strands of the Framework as 
referred to above. 
 
It is clear that the site is located within a predominantly residential area and is sustainably 
located adjacent to one of the primary routes within the city, which is a bus route. 
Furthermore, in terms of the sustainability dimensions, officers recognise that the 
development would deliver economic and social sustainability directly through the 
construction of the development and indirectly through the occupation of the dwellings, 
spend in the City and retention/creation of other jobs due to the location of the 
development within the City. In addition, the erection of development in this location would 
not in itself undermine sustainable principles of development subject to other matters. 
Notwithstanding this, it is important to consider the wider sustainability of the development. 
 

58



c) The Land Use Classification of the Site 
 
ii) The Mineral Safeguarding of the Site 
 
As alluded to above, the application site is allocated in the County Council’s Lincolnshire 
Minerals and Waste Local Plan Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 
document (Adopted June 2016) as being safeguarded as a Site Specific Minerals 
Safeguarding Area. Officers have asked the County Council, as Mineral Authority, for their 
views regarding the allocation and are yet to receive a written reply. However, verbally 
they have suggested that the loss of the site for mineral extraction purposes would not be 
harmful as it is unlikely that it would be extracted due to the size of the site and its 
residential context. As such, it would not harm the Cathedral in the long term in terms of its 
environmental or social sustainability. Consequently, officers are satisfied that the 
development would not conflict with Policy M11 of the Core Strategy & Development 
Management Policies of the Lincolnshire Minerals & Waste Local Plan (2016) and there 
would be no justification to resist the development of the site upon such grounds. 

 
d) Sustainable Access, Highway Safety and Traffic Capacity  

 
Concerns have been raised about the safety of the highway, particularly in relation to the 
parking of vehicles within the street; the fact that a further access would be unsafe due to 
planting limiting visibility; that the width of the road itself is not suitable to cater for 
additional development; and that a footpath is not included. 
 
Problems with parking of vehicles within the street are attributed to a number of HMOs, as 
well as users of the Bishop Grosseteste University and the sports pitches situated on 
Ravendale Drive but there are also concerns about the use of the roads as a cut through. 
In terms of the former, as the street is public and not controlled by a resident parking 
scheme, or yellow lined, it is not possible to regulate parking. Moreover, the occupiers (or 
visitors) of the property would, like other residents, be permitted to park on-street. The 
form and number of parking spaces provided to the property would also be no different to 
that provided for other more established properties in the street; and two spaces for a 
3-bedroom property is considered appropriate. As such, it would be unreasonable to 
suggest that the proposed property would be more likely to result in problem parking. 
Meanwhile, in terms of the latter, this appears to be a wider issue that needs to be 
attended to by the Highway Authority, which could not specifically be resolved off the back 
of this application. 
 
The Highway Authority has not raised any objections to the proposals in terms of the 
visibility from the access but this relationship would be similar to other residential 
properties situated within Harpswell Road and Aubourn Avenue so it would be difficult for 
officers to suggest a departure from the advice provided by the Highway Authority. 

 
Residents have also referred to the fact that the proposals do not include a footpath and 
officers note that the dwelling erected to the rear of No. 116 included the replacement of 
highway planting with a new footpath to link with the existing public footpath. This 
approach made sense for that application but as the current application site is divorced 
from that footpath, it would neither be necessary or proportionate to provide a footpath to 
the frontage of the short stretch of the application site. What is more, the occupiers of the 
property could cross the road to utilise the existing footpath opposite. 
 

59



The Highway Authority have also not raised any objections to the suitability of Aubourn 
Avenue itself and it is noted that they suggested for the application for the dwelling to the 
west that it meets current design standards required to serve the additional dwelling. In the 
case of that application the Highway Authority did not consider the proposals to be of 
detriment to highway safety and officers are not aware of any circumstances that would 
lead to a different conclusion being reached with the current application. 
 
e) Air Quality 
 
Whilst there has been no specific supplementary planning guidance produced in relation to 
air quality, the quality of air throughout the city has been monitored, and the clear goal of 
the action plan is to improve air quality, as advocated by the current Local Plan. 
 
The Council’s Pollution Control Officer has suggested that it is unlikely that the 
development of this site in isolation would result in significant air quality implications. 
However, the development would be likely to add to the existing burden on air quality 
within the city and, as such, it would be expected that the applicant seeks to mitigate 
against these through on-site provision of a charging point for occupants with electric 
vehicles. This seem entirely reasonable and proportionate to the scale of development. 
Officers would advise Members that this matter can be addressed by planning condition. 
 
f) Summary on this Issue 
 
In the context of the above, the proposals would offer benefits to economic and social 
sustainability through spend by new residents and jobs created/sustained through 
construction and the location of the development respectively. In addition, there is also no 
evidence to suggest matters of congestion or road safety and the impacts upon air quality 
would warrant refusal of the application due to the social or environmental sustainability of 
the development. What is more, the loss of the site for mineral extraction purposes would 
not be harmful to the long term sustainability of the Cathedral in environmental or social 
sustainability. However, these are only two issues relevant to the consideration of the 
three dimensions of sustainability. 
 
2) The Design of the Proposals 
 
a)  Relevant Planning Policy 
 
So far as this issue is concerned, as alluded to above, the proposals must achieve 
sustainable development and it is the social dimension of sustainability that relates to 
design. Moreover, Paragraph 7 of the Framework requires the creation of high quality built 
environment. In addition, the policy principles outlined in Paragraphs 17, 58, 60, 61 and 64 
of the Framework also apply. Moreover, the Framework states that good design is a key 
aspect of sustainable development and is indivisible from good planning. Design is to 
contribute positively to making places better for people (para. 56). To accomplish this 
development is to establish a strong sense of place, using streetscapes and buildings to 
create attractive and comfortable places to live and responding to local character and 
history (para. 58). It is also proper to seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness 
(para. 60). 
 
At the local level, the Council, in partnership with English Heritage, have undertaken the 
Lincoln Townscape Appraisal (the LTA), which has resulted in the systematic identification 
of 105 separate “character areas” within the City. The application site lies within the 

60



Ermine East Estate Character Area. Policy LP26 of the Plan requires that “all 
development, including extensions and alterations to existing buildings, must achieve high 
quality sustainable design that contributes positively to local character, landscape and 
townscape, and supports diversity, equality and access for all.” The policy includes 12 
detailed and diverse principles which should be assessed. This policy is supported by 
Policy LP5 which also refers to the impact on the character and appearance of the area. 
 
b)  Assessment of the Implications of the Proposals 
 
Although the host property fronts Longdales Road, the site runs north towards Aubourn 
Avenue and the proposed dwelling would front this road. The current townscape 
characteristics of the area are described within the Ermine East Character Area statement. 
In general terms, it outlines that the area has a largely uniform townscape, with streets 
generally overlooked by buildings. Specifically in terms of architectural style, it states that 
the properties are generally modern in appearance, and highlights the detached 
bungalows of Aubourn Avenue for their architectural appearance and specifically their 
distinctive roofline. The properties on Manton Road are designed differently and set further 
back, however again are modern in form. Given the context of the site, however, 
development here would be read more in conjunction with Aubourn Avenue. Moreover, 
this road deviates from the established character of the locality given it is defined on the 
southern side by a mix of hedge planting and fences.  
 
Given the existing layout of Aubourn Avenue, a dwelling in this location would be a 
significant intervention within the local townscape. It should also be borne in mind that, 
although each case is judged on its own merits, given the size of the rear gardens 
neighbouring the application site to the east and west, the proposal would not be 
significantly different from that granted permission at 116 Longdale Road. 
 
As alluded to in the report to the planning committee for that application “given the 
established character of the area, there are clear advantages in defining the southern side 
of Aubourn Avenue with built form rather than the existing mix of fence and shrubbery” and 
the Framework is supportive of establishing ‘a strong sense of place, using streetscapes 
and buildings to create attractive places to live’ (Para 58). Furthermore, the wider area is 
characterised by streets and other public areas being defined and overlooked by buildings; 
and the layout has been designed carefully to ensure there is some set back, 
predominantly of 5m from back edge of footpath which mirrors properties within the locality 
and ensures that the building is not dominant in the street scene. 
 
Architecturally, the existing bungalows on Aubourn Avenue are distinctive and individual to 
this part of the area, and any development should not attempt to imitate this style. That 
said, the existing pattern of development does offer some design cues which this proposal 
has attempted to replicate. Although more traditionally designed, the proposal incorporates 
dormers within the roof which, together with the resultant proposed roof pitch, ensures that 
the scale and form of building sits comfortably within the street scene. 
 
c) Summary on this Issue 
 
The visual implications of the proposals for the site are key to the assimilation of 
development into its context and the creation of high quality built environment and officers 
are satisfied that the application demonstrates that the dwelling would be appropriate in 
the context of the established form of development and would not be harmful to the 
character of the area. Built development would also improve the social and environmental 

61



sustainability of the locality as required by the Framework. 
 
3)  Implications of the Proposals upon Amenity 
 
a)  Relevant Planning Policy 
 
In terms of national policy, the NPPF suggests that development that results in poor 
design and/or impacts upon the quality of peoples’ lives would not amount to sustainable 
development. Consequently, the implications of both are key to the consideration of the 
acceptability of the principle of development within a given site. Moreover, the Framework 
(Paragraph 9) sees “seeking positive improvements in the quality of the built, natural and 
historic environment, as well as in people’s quality of life” as being important to the delivery 
of sustainable development, through “replacing poor design with better design” and 
“improving the conditions in which people live” amongst others. Furthermore, the core 
principles of the Framework (Paragraph 17) indicate that “planning should…always seek to 
secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future 
occupants of land and buildings”. Both aspects are referred to in detail in the following two 
sections of this report. 
 
Policy LP26 of the Plan deals with design and amenity. The latter refers to the amenities 
which all existing and future occupants of neighbouring land and buildings may reasonably 
expect to enjoy and suggests that these must not be unduly harmed by, or as a result of, 
the development. There are nine specific criteria which must be considered. Policy LP5 of 
the Plan also refers to the impact upon the amenity of neighbouring occupiers. These 
policies are in line with the policy principles outlined in Paragraphs 17, 59 and 123 of the 
NPPF. Indeed, Paragraph 123 of the Framework suggests that “decisions should aim 
to…avoid noise from giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life 
as a result of new development”. 
 
b) Concern regarding the Potential for Multiple Occupancy of the Property 
 
A number of residents have referred directly/indirectly to the possibility that the proposed 
dwelling has the potential to be used as a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) in the 
future and that the occupiers of other HMOs are causing problems locally. 
 
Whilst officers accept that it would not be possible to provide any guarantees that the 
property would not ultimately change to an HMO in the future, there are controls in place to 
ensure that this would need to be dealt with by virtue of a further planning application. 
Moreover, the introduction of the city-wide Article 4 Direction in 2016 removed the ability to 
change properties from dwellings to HMOs. However, this would be dependent upon the 
Members of the Council’s Planning Committee determining that this application should 
benefit from planning permission. 
 
In light of this, it is possible to confirm that the applicant (or subsequent owner of the 
property) would need to make a subsequent application for planning permission for the 
property to change from a dwelling to an HMO. At this point, officers (and the Members of 
the Planning Committee) would be able to consider the implications of a HMO, including 
the relationship with neighbouring properties, as well as the wider impacts of a new HMO 
cumulatively alongside other HMOs nearby. 
 
Similarly, a number of residents have referred to the potential occupancy by students and 
the behaviour of other students. Although officers consider that the property is unlikely to 

62



be occupied by unrelated students, only two individuals could occupy the 3-bedroom 
premises without the need for it to be considered as a HMO. Therefore controls over the 
non-occupation by students would be unreasonable and not proportionate. 
 
Notwithstanding this, neighbours of the application site have also raised concerns in 
relation to other matters, which are addressed below. 
 
c)  Assessment of the Implications of the Proposals 
 
i) Overlooking and loss of privacy 
 
The proposals include two dormer windows on the roof slope of the dwelling towards the 
properties on Aubourn Avenue. These would serve the master bedroom and its dressing 
room. Given that there are no first floor windows within the existing Aubourn Avenue 
properties, there would be no relationship introduced at first floor. In addition, it should also 
be borne in mind that those windows within the Aubourn Avenue properties are forward 
facing windows to an existing public street, which are generally afforded less protection in 
planning terms than those in more private spaces. Officers are therefore satisfied that no 
unacceptable overlooking across Aubourn Avenue would be caused.  
 
Similarly, due to the fact that the six rooflights positioned on the rear roof slope would be 
positioned at a height of 1.7m from the external face, it would not be possible to look out 
and down from the rooflights when stood within the rooms. Finally, in terms of the 
relationship of gardens to one another, it is proposed that there would be new tree planting 
and a 1.8m fence between the site and No. 110 Longdales Road. However, in order to 
ensure that these would be effective with land levels it is important that the final levels and 
fence heights are controlled by planning condition. Similarly, permitted development rights 
should also be removed for any additional windows in the end gables and rear roof slope, 
 
ii) Scale, massing and loss of light 
 
In terms of the scale and massing of the property, the proposals are for a two storey 
dwelling, with the second storey incorporated in the roof space. As such, the roof of the 
dwelling rakes away from the properties situated on Longdales Road and is positioned 
17m away from the rear face of the parent dwelling (No. 110). However, the end gables of 
the property propose an eaves height of 2.7m and ridge height of 6.4m.  
 
In terms of the potential for the loss of light, the property would be positioned 1m from the 
boundaries to the east and west of the site. The relationship to the east would be no 
different to that of the building approved in 2013. As such, it would be difficult for officers to 
suggest that this relationship would be inappropriate, particularly as this boundary is to the 
shared gardens of the adjacent flats, which would only be affected in the late afternoon 
due to the orientation of the site. The inverse relationship would apply to the property to 
the west, which would only be affected in the morning. Given the height of the building and 
its roof form, as well as the fact that the impact would be to the northern section of the 
garden that is not the most usable, officers are satisfied that the loss of light and impact of 
its scale that would occur would not be sufficiently harmful to warrant the refusal of the 
application upon such grounds. 
 
In terms of the impact across Aubourn Avenue, officers are satisfied given the scale of the 
proposed property and the degree of separation that the development would not cause 

63



undue loss of light or overshadowing, and this would therefore be an acceptable 
relationship. 
 
iii) Others Amenity Impacts 
 
In terms of the noise associated with construction and deliveries, officers agree with the 
Council’s Pollution Control Officer that it would be reasonable to control these through 
planning conditions to protect the amenities of existing residents. 
 
c) The Planning Balance 
 
Taking all the above in to account, it is considered that the proposed residential 
development of the site could be accommodated within the site in the future in a manner 
that would not cause unacceptable harm. Moreover, with satisfactory controls over land 
levels, fences and working / delivery hours, the proposals would be socially and 
environmentally sustainable in the context of the Framework and would accord with the 
policies in the Local Plan. 
 
4) Other Matters 
 
a) Land Contamination 
 
i)  Relevant Planning Policy 
 
As with air quality, Paragraph 109 of the Framework also refers to contamination. 
Paragraph 120 expands upon this and suggests that “to prevent unacceptable risks from 
pollution and land instability, planning policies and decisions should ensure that new 
development is appropriate for its location. The effects (including cumulative effects) of 
pollution on health, the natural environment or general amenity, and the potential 
sensitivity of the area or proposed development to adverse effects from pollution, should 
be taken into account. Where a site is affected by contamination or land stability issues, 
responsibility for securing a safe development rests with the developer and/or landowner.”  
 
In addition Paragraph 121 states that planning decisions “should also ensure that:  

 the site is suitable for its new use taking account of ground conditions and land 
instability, including from natural hazards or former activities such as mining, 
pollution arising from previous uses and any proposals for mitigation including land 
remediation or impacts on the natural environment arising from that remediation; 

 after remediation, as a minimum, land should not be capable of being determined 
as contaminated land under Part IIA of the Environmental Protection Act 1990; and 

 adequate site investigation information, prepared by a competent person, is 
presented.” 

 
In terms of Local Plan policies, given the location of the site, Policy LP16 directly refers to 
the requirements of development in relation to contaminated land. 
 
ii)  Assessment of the Implications of the Proposals 
 
Officers are advised by the Council’s Scientific Officer that a planning condition should be 
imposed to deal with unexpected land contamination, which it is considered would be 
appropriate due to the residential use of the site. 
 

64



b) Ecology, Biodiversity and Arboriculture          

 
i)  Relevant Planning Policy 
 
Paragraph 118 of the NPPF requires LPAs to conserve and enhance biodiversity by 
refusing planning permission where significant harm resulting from a development cannot 
be avoided, mitigated or compensated for. Meanwhile Policy LP21 of the Central 
Lincolnshire Local Plan makes reference to the fact that proposals should not have 
significant detrimental impacts on ecology. 
 
ii)  Assessment of the Implications of the Proposals 
 
In this instance a resident has referred to the loss of the hedge within the site and the 
potential impact upon ecology. As it is a residential property, the applicant could cut the 
hedge down at any point and this would be controlled. However, it is proposed that the 
hedge would be replaced by new planting, which officers consider appropriate in the 
context of established character. The details of this can be controlled by planning 
condition. Furthermore, the removal of hedges should also not take place during the bird 
breeding season (March- September), which can also be controlled by condition. 
 
c) Drainage 
 
Policy LP14 of the Local Plan deals with foul water disposal and it is proposed that the 
development would be connected to the mains sewer. A resident has queried whether 
there is sufficient capacity within the existing system to support the development. 
However, they have not suggested that there is a problem with existing infrastructure. In 
light of this, officers have no reason to question whether there would be infrastructure 
available to serve the dwelling proposed. Ultimately the applicant would need to agree a 
connection with the relevant authority. 
 
In terms of surface water drainage it is proposed that this would be to soakaway, which 
would meet the aims of the Local Plan and Framework in terms of a sustainable approach 
to drainage. However, should soakaways ultimately prove to not be possible, officers 
consider it would be necessary to have controls in place to address this matter, in the form 
of a planning condition. 
 
5) Planning Balance 
 
A conclusion whether a development is sustainable is a decision that has to be taken in 
the round having regard to all of the dimensions that go to constitute sustainable 
development.  
 
In this case officers recognise that the development would deliver economic benefits 
through employment and spend in the city. Whilst the Council currently has a five-year 
supply of housing, the location of additional residential development in a sustainable 
location would not undermine this position, rather it would provide additional choice. 
Furthermore, with a suitably designed development, the implications upon the character of 
the area and the residential amenities of near neighbours would not have negative 
sustainability implications for the local community, as they would lead to a development 
that would be socially sustainable. In addition, with suitable schemes to deal with drainage 
and contamination (if required) and air quality, the development would be environmentally 
sustainable. 

65



 
What is more, from a social and environmental perspective, the proposals would not 
undermine the ability of the Cathedral to be repaired in the future as the site would not be 
a suitable point of extraction due to its residential context. These matters would need to be 
weighed up in the planning balance. 
 
Thus, assessing the development as a whole in relation to its economic, social and 
environmental dimensions and benefits, it is considered that, in the round, this proposal 
could be considered as sustainable development and would accord with the Local Plan 
and Framework. 
 
In this case, officers are satisfied that all of the strands would be positively reinforced by 
the proposals. As such, assessing the development as a whole in relation to its economic, 
social and environmental dimensions and benefits, it is considered that, in the round, this 
proposal could be considered as sustainable development and would accord with the 
Local Plan and Framework. 
 
Application negotiated either at pre-application or during process of application 
 
No 
 
Financial Implications 
 
The proposals would offer benefits to economic and social sustainability through spend by 
new residents and jobs created/sustained through construction and the location of the 
development respectively. In addition, the property would be subject to council tax 
payments. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None 
 
Equality Implications 
 
None 
 
Conclusion 
 
The presumption in favour of sustainable development required by the National Planning 
Policy Framework would apply to the proposals as there would not be conflict with the 
three strands of sustainability that would apply to development as set out in the planning 
balance. Therefore, there would not be harm caused by approving the development. As 
such, it is considered that the application should benefit from planning permission for the 
reasons identified in the report and subject to the conditions outlined below. 
 
Application Determined within Target Date 
 
Yes, subject to an extension of time. 
 

66



Recommendation 
 
The development should therefore only be granted subject to the planning conditions 
covering the matters listed below:- 
 

 Timeframe of the application; 

 Approved Plans; 

 Approved materials; 

 Landscaping; 

 No removal of hedges during bird breeding season; 

 Parking needs to be provided prior to occupation; 

 Surface water drainage scheme if soakaway not suitable; 

 Finished Floor Levels and fences (for privacy); 

 Unexpected Contamination; 

 Construction of the development (delivery times and working hours); 

 Electric Vehicle Recharging point; and 

 PD Removal (windows in gables and rear roof slope). 
 
Report by Planning Manager 
 

67



This page is intentionally blank.



Plans 
 

Site Location Plan 
 

 
 

69



Block Plan 

 

70



Ground and First Floor Plans 
 

 
 
  

71



Elevations 
 

72



Cross-section Drawing 

 
 
  

73



Site Photographs 
 

 
View Southeast towards the application site and along Aubourn Avenue from 

Harpswell Road (application site contains the larger hedge frontage) 
 

 
View East along Harpswell Road 

74



 
View South West towards the application site 

(dwellings situated on Longdales Road visible in the background) 
 

 
View of the property recently erected at the rear of 116 Longdales Road 

(facing on to Aubourn Avenue) 

75



This page is intentionally blank.



Comments Received on the Application 
 
Councillor Liz Maxwell 
 
I have three concerns about this application. 
 
This road is a very busy as it is one of the two access points to the estate. Access is 
shown as being in Auburn Avenue and this road at this location is quite narrow so 
therefore access to another house on the opposite side of the road could cause 
problems to the existing residents. This would be made worse if a guest or workman 
of the new property was to park on that side of the road. Also the mere thought of 
another two houses in back gardens would not bear thinking about. 
 
There are many parking problems along this stretch of the road as there are already 
two multi lets at Nos. 34 and 49 and others in the area. Also students and visitors to 
Bishop Grosseteste park here and often access is being blocked to residents. 
Complaints have been made to Bishop Grosseteste about the students from these 
properties. Also when there are matches on the sports field in Ravendale Drive a fair 
amount of visitors also park in this very narrow road. 
 
As mentioned above there are several multi lets in the area and the residents are 
extremely concerned that this property does not become another multi let in the 
future. 
 

Neighbours 
 
Mr. P. Kettlewell (26 Aubourn Avenue) 
 
I wish to object to the above planning application on the grounds of Road Safety, if 
the application was to go ahead vehicles exiting the property will have no line of sight 
of vehicles travelling along Aubourn Ave due to the hedging either side of the 
proposed driveway. 
 
This will create the same problems current being experienced further up the road 
outside 34 Aubourn Ave,when vehicles are exiting the property with near misses a 
common occurrence. The new development will also end up the same problem of 
vehicles parking on the street, causes problems for other road users on Aubourn 
Ave. 
 
Additional Comments 
 
Although no indication given on the planning application that the 110 Longdale Road 
development will be used for student accommodation, the general feeling in the 
community is that student accommodation is the ultimate aim of this development 
this added to the privately let student accommodation already in the area ( Longdale 
Road, Aubourn Ave, Harpswell Road, and Manton Road). 
 
The general feeling being the area is becoming swamped with privately let student 
accommodation, which if allowed to continue will lead to the same problems 
experienced in the West End of the City. 

77



 
It does seem that with the council allowing private landlords to force their way into 
the area and buy up both housing stock and develop purpose built student 
accommodation they have little regard for the feelings and wellbeing of local 
residents. 
I would be grateful if the planning committee would take my objection and comments 
into account when considering this application. 
 
Mr. T. Vernon (30 Aubourn Avenue) 
 

 
 
  

78



Mr. R. Brown (32 Aubourn Avenue) 
 

 
 

79



 

80



 
 
  

81



Mr. C. Pell (39 Aubourn Avenue) 
 
Online Comments:- 
 
Is this property going to another multi let where more problems from car parking like 
at this present time. Also looking at the plan I can see getting vehicle's on and off the 
proposed development could be an issue. 
 
No provision has been made for a footpath from the proposed property. Also there is 
now extra parking problems from multi let properties around this area. There is quite 
a few elderly people living in the street where the proposed site is. Also the removal 
of the boundary hedge would be detrimental to the wildlife what use the hedgerow. 
This will change the character of the area considerable. 
 
By Letter:- 

 
 
  

82



Mr. P Flood (41 Aubourn Avenue) 
 

 
 

83



 
 

84



 
 

85



 
 
Mr. C. Hall (43 Aubourn Avenue) 
 
Area being changed due to multiple lets and loss of council tax being paid. Dynamics 
of once quiet residential area being changed. Fragmentation of a local community. 
 
  

86



Mrs. S. Hall (43 Aubourn Avenue) 
 
Online Comments:- 
 
Area being changed due to multiple occupancy; people parking on pathways; loss of 
privacy; and loss of light from existing streetlamp where new development will be. 
 
And by Letter: 
 

 
 

87



 
 
  

88



Mr. M. Smith (45 Aubourn Avenue) 
 
Could I note our OBJECTION to this planning application due to our concerns of an 
increase in demand for parking along Aubourn Avenue. Through a combination of a 
recent house build, parking restrictions on Longdales Road, Aubourn Avenue is 
frequently entirely full of parked cards. The impact of these parked cards on 
residents is extreme difficulty in pulling out of driveways and driving past parked cars 
on blind corners. The proposed parking for this dwelling is only two car parking 
spaces, any parking beyond two cars would have to be absorbed on an already 
extremely busy and narrow Avenue. We request that the impact on local residents is 
given careful consideration during this process. 
 
Mr. D. Neill (9 Harpswell Road) 
 
There is a potential that this property may eventually become another 'multi-let', 
possibly for students in this area. This was once a quite area of mainly elderly 
residents. This mature age group does not fit well with an increasingly younger uphill 
student population. Traffic does drive quickly along Aubourn Avenue and there is a 
potential for an accident to occur with cars exiting this new building. There is also not 
enough parking spaces being provided for within the property which then means 
more cars parking on the streets, more late night noise etc. 
 
Mr. V. Bell (11 Harpswell Road) 
 
I object to this application. By stealth the nature of this small estate of bungalows, 
mainly occupied by retired people, is being changed against the wishes of residents. 
Multiple occupancy is now a real problem with cars parked partly on footpaths, since 
students have nowhere to park off road, and yet another house/bungalow will only 
add to the problem. We can expect any restrictions on multiple occupancy placed on 
this application if approved, to be relaxed later. 
 
  

89



Mrs. J. F. Hardesty (106 Longdales Road) 
 

 
 
Mr. D. Tonge (1 Manton Road) 
 
As a local resident I write to object to this application, My concern is that if approved 
it will lead to an increase in vehicular traffic on Aubourn Ave, a road which already 
carries a significant level of traffic. We have one bungalow multi occupation originally 
this was built to accommodate 4 people it now has 5 occupants and adjacent 
property is undergoing extension to accommodate what looks like a further 4 
bedrooms, in my view property extension which is proposed is not appropriate in this 
family / retirement residential area. 
 
  

90



Mr. & Mrs. Pearson (4 Manton Road) 

 
 

Consultees 
 
Lincolnshire County Council (as Local Highway and Lead Local Flood 
Authority) 
 
Notice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local 
Flood Authority:  
 

Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission. 
 
CONDITIONS (INCLUDING REASONS) /REASONS FOR REFUSAL/ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION REQUIRED 
 
HI03 - Prior to the submission of details for any access works within the public 

highway you must contact the Divisional Highways Manager on 01522 782070 for 

application, specification and construction information. 

91



This page is intentionally blank.



Application Number: 2017/0594/FUL 

Site Address: The Phoenix, St Helens Avenue, Lincoln 

Target Date: 26th July 2017 

Agent Name: JH Walter LLP 

Applicant Name: Valerie Waby 

Proposal: Change of use of dwellinghouse (class C3) to residential care home 
(class C2) 

 
Background - Site Location and Description 
 
The proposed development relates to a large detached property (dormer bungalow), known as The 
Phoenix, located at the northern end of St Helens Avenue, off Skellingthorpe Road, approximately 
half way between its junctions with Tritton Road and Boultham Park Road. 
 
The property is constructed of Anglian buff brick with red engineering brick detail at 
reveals/corners/plinth, and includes an integral double garage, and paved parking area to the front. 
It is centrally positioned within the application site, which is accessed via a private driveway off St 
Helens Avenue. 
 
The application has been made by the Linkage Trust, a registered charity which provides care, 
specialist further education and employment services to people with varying degrees of learning 
disabilities. The Trust is developing a campus within the grounds of  Boultham Park, the delivery 
of which is dependent on the provision of accessible residential care accommodation nearby. 
 
 
Site History 
 

Reference: Description Status Decision Date:  

LJ28/0287/95 Erection of a detached 
house. 

Granted 
Conditionally 

7th August 1995  

 
Case Officer Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 22nd June 2017 
 
Policies Referred to 
 
National Planning Policy Framework  
Policy LP1 A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 9 
Policy LP10 Meeting Accommodation Needs 33 
 
Issues 
 
- National and local planning policy 
- The principle of the development 
- Accessibility and parking provision 
- Potential impact on residential amenity 
 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community Involvement, 
adopted May 2014.  
 
Statutory Consultation Responses 
 

Consultee Comment  

93

Item No. 4d



 
Lincolnshire Police 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Environmental Health 

 
No Response Received 
 

 
Highways & Planning 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
 
Public Consultation Responses 
 

Name Address  

Angus Fraser 47 St Helen's Avenue 
Lincoln 
LN6 7RA       

Mr Angus Fraser 47 St Helens Avenue 
Lincoln 
LN6 7RA 

 
Consideration 
 
The proposed development comprises the change of the use of the property from a Class C3 
dwelling house to a Class C2 residential care home for up to seven residents. The existing internal 
layout of the property would be altered to provide six bedrooms with en-suite facilities, and 
associated communal rooms and carer/manager offices, with the potential for a seveth en-suite 
bedroom to be provided if needed. No external alterations are proposed. 
 
National and local planning policy 
Evidence shows that the majority of residents in Central Lincolnshire whose day-to-day activities 
are limited a lot by their long-term health problem or disability do not live in communal 
establishments, suggesting that they live at home or with relatives, friends or carers. This suggests 
an ongoing need to ensure that there is a sufficient supply of suitable accommodation, such as the 
residential care accommodation proposed by this application (Central Lincolnshire Strategic 
Housing Market Assessment, July 2015). 
 
Policy LP10 'Meeting Accommodation Needs' of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017) 
requires residential care accommodation, which is designed to accommodate those who need 
some form of on-site assistance, to be located in a settlement in levels 1 to 4 of the settlement 
hierarchy. Lincoln Urban Area is considered an appropriate location for residential care 
accommodation, as it is at level 1 of the settlement hierarchy. 
 
The principle of the development 
The existing lawful use of the application property falls within Class C3 (dwelling houses) of the 
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended). Some residential care 
accommodation falls within Class C3, as the definition allows for a dwelling house to be used by 
'not more than six residents living together as a single household where care is provided to 
residents'. The applicant has applied to change the use of the property to a residential care home, 
which falls within Class C2 (residential institutions) of the Use Classes Order, as up to seven 
residents would live at the property, and they would not form a single household. 
 
Class C2 (residential institutions) of the Use Classes Order includes a number of different types of 
residential institutions, some of which may be more appropriately located elsewhere in the city. It 
is, therefore, considered appropriate to impose a condition on an approved application to prevent 
the use of the property from changing to another use within Class C2 without the need for planning 
permission. 

94



 
Accessibility and parking provision 
Local residents have expressed concerns regarding vehicle movements and parking provision 
associated with the proposed development. Officers consider these have largely been addressed 
by the applicant's response to Lincolnshire County Council's request for a parking strategy, a copy 
of which is appended to this report. The strategy is essentially a travel plan, which is based on 
minimising car travel and maximising the use of sustainable modes of transport. The application 
states none of the residents would drive, therefore, vehicle movements would be limited to those 
associated with carers travelling to and from the site; visiting family and friends, who would arrive 
by appointment only; and the occasional mini-bus for residents excursions. Residents would 
primarily travel to and from nearby services and facilities, including the Linkage Trust campus, on 
foot or by bus.  
 
The application site includes 4 parking spaces, which officers consider is adequate for the 
proposed use, given the potential for more sustainable modes of transport to be used by those 
accessing the site. Nevertheless, some unrestricted on-street parking is available on St Helens 
Avenue. 
 
Potential impact on residential amenity 
To the south of the application property is the detached property at 42 St Helens Avenue, to the 
north is the detached property at 123 Western Avenue, and to the west is the detached property 
known as Paddock House. To the east are playing fields associated with St Peter and St Paul 
Catholic Voluntary Academy. 
 
The supporting statement submitted with the application states care would be provided to residents 
24/7, with a high ratio of carers to residents. Taking into account the proposed level of on-site care 
and management, it is considered that the proposed change of use would have a negligible impact 
on the amenities which all existing and future occupants of neighbouring land and properties may 
reasonably expect to enjoy. 
 
Lincoln Townscape Assessment 
 
Skellingthorpe Character Area is mainly residential with some commercial and civic buildings 
centred around the Boultham Park Road roundabout in the north east of the Character Area and 
along Skellingthorpe Road. The existing character is strongly influenced by housing development 
during the Inter-War Period [1919-1945]. The construction of St. Helen's Avenue was proposed by 
Mrs E Blank, builder, in April 1929. The majority of the housing was built between the 1920s and 
1938 with the remainder complete by 1950. Since 1950 development in the Character Area has 
mainly consisted of small scale infill, including the application property, which was constructed in 
1997. 
 
Application negotiated either at pre-application or during process of application 
 
No 
 
Financial Implications 
 
None 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None 
 
Equality Implications 
 
None 
 

95



Conclusion 
 
The proposed change of use would meet an identified need for residential care accommodation 
and be appropriately located within the Lincoln Urban Area, in accordance with Policy LP10 
'Meeting Accommodation Needs' of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017), and would not 
unduly impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties or the wider area. Access to and from 
the site would be safe and convenient for both pedestrians and vehicles. Parking provision would 
be adequate, given the scale of the proposed development, and the potential for more sustainable 
modes of transport to be used. 
 
Application Determined within Target Date 
 
Yes 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the application is Granted Conditionally 
 
Standard Conditions  
 
01) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with 

the date of this permission. 
   
  Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
  
02) With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of this consent, the 

development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings listed 
within Table A below. 

  The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the approved plans 
and in any other approved documents forming part of the application. 

   
  Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works 
 
  None 
    
Conditions to be discharged before use is implemented 
 
  None 
   
Conditions to be adhered to at all times 
 
05) Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any subsequent re-enactment or revocation 
thereof) the dwelling hereby approved shall only be used for the residential care 
accommodation hereby approved and shall not be used for any other purpose within Class 
C2 of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) without the 
prior consent of the City Council as Local Planning Authority. 

   
  Reason:  In the interests of residential amenity. 
  
06) The arrangements detailed in the strategy for the parking of vehicles shall be available at all 

times when the property is in use. 
   
  Reason:  To enable calling vehicles to wait clear of the carriageway of St Helens Avenue. 
 

96



Table A 
The above recommendation has been made in accordance with the submitted drawings identified 
below: 

Drawing No. Version Drawing Type Date Received 

L-LIN-142-LP  Location Plan 26th May 2017 

  Floor Plans - Existing 26th May 2017 

  Floor Plans - Proposed 26th May 2017 

 

97



This page is intentionally blank.



Plans and photos for planning application 2017/0594/FUL 

 

  

99



 

100



 

101



 

 

Site entrance from St Helens Avenue 

Existing private driveway to application site 

102



 

 

Front elevation of application property 

Side elevation of application property (facing adjacent playing fields) 

103



 

 

 

View of St Helens Avenue towards Skellingthorpe Road 

104



Highways comments and response for planning application 2017/0594/FUL 

 

  

 

Environment & Economy 

Unit 4, Witham Park House 
Waterside South, Lincoln LN5 7JN 
Tel:   (01522) 782070 
E-Mail:Highwayssudssupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Lincoln City Council 

 

Application Ref: 2017/0594/FUL 

 

 

With reference to this application dated 30 May 2017, relating to the following proposed 

development: 

 

Address or location    

 

The Phoenix, St Helens Avenue, Lincoln, LN6 7RA 

 

Date application referred by the LPA  

 1 June 2017 

 

Type of application:  Outline/Full/RM/: 

Full Planning Application 

 

 

Description of development 

 

Change of use of dwellinghouse (class C3) to residential care home (class C2) 

 

Notice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local Flood 

Authority: 

 

 Requests that the Local Planning Authority request the applicants to 

provide additional information as set out below. 

 

 

105



CONDITIONS (INCLUDING REASONS) /REASONS FOR REFUSAL/ADDITIONAL 

INFORMATION REQUIRED 

 

The Highway Authority would request the applicant submits a parking strategy for the proposal. 

Outlining requirements considering staff numbers and visitors etc.  

 

Case Officer: John Clifton 

 

for Mark Welsh 

Flood Risk and Development Management 

 

Date:  22/06/17 

 

 

106



107



 

  

108



109



 

  

110



Consultee comments for planning application 2017/0594/FUL 

 

 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE 
 

POLICE HEADQUARTERS 

PO Box 999 

LINCOLN  LN5 7PH 

Fax:  (01522) 558128  

DDI:  (01522) 558292 

email  

john.manuel@lincs.pnn.police.uk 

 

 

 

 

Your Ref: App. 2017/0594/FUL                                                          29th June 2017 

  

Our Ref: PG// 

 

Development & Environmental Services 

City Hall, Beaumont Fee 

Lincoln, LN1 1DF 

 

Re: The Phoenix, St Helens Avenue, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN6 7RA 

 

Thank you for your correspondence and opportunity to comment on the proposed 

development.  

 

Lincolnshire Police has no formal objections to the planning application.  

 

The new regulations in respect of approved windows and doors may apply to this 

development and presume that compliance will be ensured by way of Building Regulations. 

 

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or clarification. 

111



Please refer to New Homes 2016 which can be located on www.securedbydesign.com New 

Homes 2016 36.1 this includes details of the criteria for bespoke window fittings that may to 
apply to this development. 

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract.  Neither the 

Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the advice given.  

However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce the opportunity for crimes to be 

committed. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

John Manuel MA BA(Hons) PGCE Dip Bus. 

 

Force Crime Prevention Design Advisor 

 

  

112

http://www.securedbydesign.com/


Public comments for planning application 2017/0594/FUL 

 

  

113



 

114


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 21 June 2017
	3 Work to Trees in City Council Ownership
	4a Lincoln Central Railway Station, St Marys Street, Lincoln
	Railway station trees plans etc

	4b 19 St Catherines, Lincoln
	19 St Catherines Plans and comments

	4c Land To Rear Of 110 Longdales Road, Lincoln
	110 Longdales Road - Plans and Photographs
	110 Longdales Road - Comments

	4d The Phoenix, St Helens Avenue, Lincoln
	PheonixPlans&Photos


